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Lake ,Victoria North Water Works Development Agency 
Annual Report and Fhwncial Stc.tements 
/07' the year ended 30 June 2022 . 

1 1. KEY AGENCY INFORM:ATION AND MANACE\1ENT 

(a) 	Background information 
Lake Victoria North VVater Works Development Agency (LVNWWDA) is one of the eight 1 Agencies established through a gazette 11l:..~ice no. 28 dated 26th April 2019 under the Water 

1 
Act 2016, as part of the reforms in the Y\. ater sector. The repealed Water Act 2002was 
replB.ced by the Water Act 2016, which ;.n compliance with the Constitution, devolved 
Water Provision function to the County G::Jvernments. 

1 
 Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Ager.cy serves the counties of Bungoma, 


1 

Kakamega, Vihiga, Busia, Tn:.ns-N zoia, and Nandi. The total, coverage area of the Agency's 

mandate is 15,356 sq. km, with an estimated pOF·ulation of about 7.5 million. Currently, 

the Agency serves an average of 57% of this population. 


(b) Principal Activities 

1 LVNWWDA draws its mandate from the Water Act of 2016. As per the Act the Agency's 
mandate include" . 

1 €I undertake the development, m~intenance and management of the national public water 
works within its area of jurisdiction; 

1 c operate the waterworks and provide wate!· services.as a waterservke provider, until such 
a time as responsibility for the operation and management of the water works are handed 

over to a county goVel1U11ent, joint commiltee, authority of county governments or water

1 services provider within whose area of jurisdktion or supply the waterworks is located; 

o Provide reserve capacity for purposes of providing water services where pursuant to 

1 sectiorl 103 of the Act, the l~cgulatory .\gency ordt!rs the transfer of water services 

furtctions from a defaulting we.ter services pro'v;der to another licensee: 

'1 (/) Provide technical servir:es and capacity building to such county governments and water 
services providers within il s area as may be requested; and; 

1 
c Provide to the Cabinet Secretary technical support in the discharge of his or her functions 

under the Constitution and the Water Act 2016. 

1 Vision 
Universal Access to Water and Sanitation Services. 

1 Mission 
To develop, maintain and manage inirastnlcture for sustainable water and sanitation 
services. 

1 

1 
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Core Values 
" Integrity: The organization will endeavour to operate above board in all its operations 

• 	 Quality Services: The organization will endeavour to provide services that meet the 

expectations of its customers. 
• 	 Good Governance: ll1e organization will conduct its affairs in a transparent and 

accountable manner; and seek stakeholder participation in decision-making process. 

• 	 Team Spirit: The organization will seek to have an organization built on teamwork and 

high level of discipline. 

D 	 Environmental Protection: The organization will remain a committed advocate of 

sustainable environment in all its dealings 

(c) Key Management 

The LVNWWDA'S day-to-day management is under the following key organs: 


Chief Executive Officer 
Chief Manager-Finance and Resource Mobilization 
Chief Manager-Technical Services 
Chief Manager-Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Chief Manager-Corporate Services 
Corporation Secretary 

(d) Fiduciary Management 

The key management team who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2021 
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were: 

No. Designation 	 Name 
Eng. Gongi S. Peter 1. 	 Ag.CEO 

Eng. George Odedeh2. 	 Chief Manager Technical Services 

CS Elizabeth Ngala3. 	 Corporation Secretary 

4. 	 Chief Manager Finance& Resource Mobilization CPA Anthony Kisaka 
Chief Manager Internal Audit &Risk5. 	 CPA Charles Tung'aManagement 


Ag. Manager Human Resource & 

6. Administration 	 Edward Luvusi 

7. Ag. Manager Procurement 	 Joseph Wafula Makari 
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(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

I 
I 

Ministry of Water & Sanitation- Reviews the budget approved by the board in order to ensure 
that the Government strategic objectives and policies are incorporated. 

I 
Public Investment Commj~tee - The Committee ensures that there is value for money for all 
projects undertaken by the Board.' ' 

I 
State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC) - The Committee is mandated to advise the 
board on the general adniir:.istration issues. 

I 
Inspectorate of State Corporations- Evaluates the results of the'ooard based on the agreed 
performance targets. 

I 
Board of Directors; - Overall oversighi and direction of al1 the board activities, the following 
are committees of the Board; 

I 
1. Finance and Administration Committee, whose r::lain duties are: - to review financial 

statements and annual budgets; Financial perfl)nnance; Strat~gic plarming, am1ual 
performance reviews, perioc:ic review of s~aff remuneration and terms of service; 
appointments and discipl,inary actions for senior staff; and general welfare of the 
Board's employees,

I ii. Governance, Risk & Audit Committee, whose main duty is to ensure that the systems 
of internal cOlitrol are effected and complied to, 

iii. Technical and Envhonmental Committee, whose focus is on issues arising from 

I LVNWWDi\ stewardship of essential water infrastructure and has a duty of reviewing 
the conditions and performance of technical assets including projects. The committee 
is also tasked with ensuring safeguarding the environment. 

I 
I 

Development partner over&ight activities 
For projects funded by external development partners, quarterly repor:s are submitted. The 
funds are audited by external auditors appointed by the Development Partners on an annual 
basis. 

I 
I 

(f) Agency Headquarters 

Kenfinco Complex 

Kakemega-Kisumu Road 

I 
P.O Box 673 - 50100 

KAKAMEGA 


I 
Tel: 254- 56-30795 

Fax: 254-056-31506 

E-mail: info@lvnW\l\'da.go.l<e· 

Website: www.lvnwV\{da.go.l<e 

I 
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(g) Bankers 
Kenya Conunercial Bank 
Kakamega Branch 
P.O Box 152 - 50100 
KAKAMEGA I 
Cooperative Bank 
Kakamega Branch IP.O Box 595- 50100 
KAKAMEGA 

IStandard chartered bank 
Kakamega Branch 
PO BOX 292-50100 IKAKAMEGA 

(h) Independent Auditors IAuditor General 
Office of the Auditor-General 
Anniversary Towers, University Way IP.O. Box 30084 
GPO 00100 
Nairobi, Kenya I 
(i) Principal Legal Adviser I 
The Attorney General 
State Law Office 
Harambee Avenue I 
P.O. Box 40112 
City Square 00200 
Nairobi, Kenya I 
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I Hon. Manyala Keya (Born 15.12.1952), Member 'If the Board 

of Directors 
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2. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FROM 1ST JULY 2021 TO 30TH JUNE 2022 

Julius Bakasa Wasike, HSC ~Born 6.6.19(5) ChairmaIl of the 
Board . 

The Cabinet Secretary appointed him as the Board's 
Chairman for Water and Sanitation' on 7th August 2020 as 
Non- Executive Board Chair of Lake Victoria North Water 
Works Development Agency. He holds a BA degree in Public 
Administration and Political Scknce. He ',.;as previously the 
Director Special Programmes at the County Government of 
Bungoma. 

I 
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Zipporah Kaari Matasi (Born 24.12.1961), Member of the 
Board of Directors and Chairperson Governance, Audit and 
Risk Committee 

She was appointed as a Non- Executive director of Lake 
Victoria North Water Works Development Agency on 6th 
October 2021. She holds a Master's in Project Management 
from Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and 
Technology (JKUAT), Post graduate Diploma in project 
Management from DALC College, Bachelor of Commerce 
degree, Accounting option from the University of Nairobi. 
Previous engagements include Director heal~h administration 
services at the County Government of Trans N30ia, a trustee 
at the coffee development fund among otllers. She is the 
Chairperson of the Governance, Audit and Risk Committee 
and a member of Teclmical & Environmental Committee. 

Anne Desma Chimoso Chilande (Born 11.05..1981), Member 

of" the Board of Directors and Chairperson Technical & 

Environmental Committee 
 II 
She was appointed as a Non- Executive director of Lake 

Victoria North Water Works Development Agency on 6th 
 II 
October 2021. She holds BA counselling psychology degree, 

Diploma counselling psychology, Diploma social work and 

community development Advanced diploma biblical studies, 

Diploma in water resources and management, A Trainer of 

Trainers, certificate in disaster risk reduction and emergency 

preparedness and response. She is also " Disaster risk 

reduction ambassador recognized Ly worldwide 

encouragement society. She is a founder o~ Rethink Mental 

health care Kenya (closing gaps in mental h.eaith jssues and 

co- founder western partners' empowerment link cOlmnunity 

based organization. Previous engagements include Director at 

NGO funded by compassion international and accountant in 

the same organization. She is the Chairperson of the Technical 

& Environmental Committee and a member of Governance, I 
Audit and Risk Committee. \ 

~----------~--------I 
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Mr. Paul Asele (Born 1:10.1962) ~ Member, ~f th;B~)ard -;;i1 Directors 

1 Mr. Paul Asele is the Principal SB.:retary, Ministry of Water, 
Sanitation and Irrigatiori's representative to the Agency from 
28th July 2021. He has over 39 years' experience in the public 

1 sector having worked in various Gov,Jrnmcnt Ministries 
including Planning, Education.. Home 'Affair, State Law 
Office, National Police ServIce and Regional Development. 

1 Has wide Knowledge and experience in strategic plamling, 
budgeting, performance management, project IT.'::nitoring and 
evaluation.

1 
1 

He is the Dh:-ector Economic Plaruung at tJ: e Ministry 
responsible for projects monitoring and evaluation, co­
cOIweIung of Medium-Term Experiditure Framework Budget 
process and Performance management. He hold3 C', Bachelor" 

1 
1 of Arts degree in Economics and Master's degree in 

Economics, from the University' \)f Nairobi. He has. also I 
attended several courses, seminars, workshops and tr,ui.ung I 

locally and internationally. Prior to his appointment J\.1rs. 

1 
Rose Nyakwana served in the same position from 28,h June 
2018' to 27th July 2021. He is a member of FinanCe and 
Admish'ation Committee, Governance Risk and Audit 
Committee and Technical and Environmental Committee. 

1 Samuel Kipkoech Kiptorus (Born 18.2.1968) - Member of the 
Board of Directors and Chairman Finance & Administration I 
Committee 

1 He was appointed on 5th May 2021 as a NO\l- Executive 
director to represent PS, National Treasury. Diredcl' Samuel

1 Kiptorus is a Seriior Deputy Directox in National Treasury and 

1 
Planning, an Alternate Director at Lake Victoria North Water 
Works Development Agency and· Minerals Rights Board. I 
Previously he was an alternate director in lCT Authority and' 
Maseno University Council. H~ holds a Masters in Alis degree 

1 from the University of Dar-es-salaam and Bachelors of Arts, 
degree from the University of Nairobi. He is the Chai::man I 
Finance & Administration Committee. 

1 

1 
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Eng. Samson Peter Gongi (Born lllJ2.1963) -Ag. Chief 
Executive Officer II 
He was appointed the Acting Chief Executive Officer of Lake 
Victoria North Water Works Development Agency on 14th II
July 2021. He holds a Master's degree in Environmental 
Engineering and Management from Jomo Kenyatta 
University of Agriculture and Technology 2016 and a II
Bachelor of Science in Agricultural Engineering from the 
University of Nairobi 1989. 

He has over 30 years working experience in the Public Sector 
which include 3 years as Director of Irrigation and Drainage 
in the Ministry of Water Samtation & Irr.Igation, 3 years 
working as Provincial Irrigation Officer Central Province, 10 
years designing and implementation of irrigation projects and 
Earth DanIs and 15 years in Management of Agricultural 
Machinery and Devel?pment, of Agricultural equipment. He 
is a registered professional Engineer with Engineers Board of 
Kenya and a Corporate member with Kenya Institute of 
Engineers. Trained in various fields including; Strategic i 
leadership & Management; Senior Management; Irrigation. 
design and Implementation; Design of Small dams & Water 
Pans; Management of Agricultural Machinery; Soil and Water 
Conservation etc. Prior to his appointment. 

I·1 
He replaced Mr. Daniel Koech Bundotich \·vho served in the 

same positon from 14th September 2020 to 13th July 2021. He is 
 IIa member of Finance and Admistration Committee and 

Technical and Environmental Committee. 
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-'----~~-----.------,-----'-------------, 
CS Elizabeth Ngala (Born 27.8.1977), Corporation Secretary 

She was appointed on 2::d ' May 2'01,6 as tb.-= Corporation 
secretary. She holds a Bachelor's of Laws. (~LB)Hons. Degree::!, 
a Post Graduate Diploma in Law, cmd CPA Graduate. 
Elizabeth is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She is a 
Certified Public Secretary registered with th;: lnsti:ute of 
Certified Public Secretaries of KeliYa. She is a Member of Law 
Society of Kenya. Elizabeth has wide experie.nce in Legal, 
company secretarial and corporate governance having served 
in both private and public sectors. She is responsible for 
providing guidance and support to the Board and driving the 
corporate governance agenda. 

xlPage 
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3. SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM 

1. Samson Peter Gangi - Born 14.12.1963 

xi IP age 

Ag. Chief Executive Officer 

He was appointed the Acting Chief Executive 
Officer of Lake Victoria North Water Works 
Develop~ent Agency on 14th July 2021. He 
. holds a· Master's degree in Environmental 
Engineering and Management from Jomo 
Kenyatta University of Agriculture and 
Teclmology2016 and a Bachelor of Science in 
Agricultural Engineering from the University 
of Nairobi 1989. 

He has over 30 years working experience in the 
Public Sector which include 3 years as Director 
of Irrigation and Drainage in the Ministry of 
Water Sanitation & Irrigation, 3 years working 
as Provincial Irrigatio.n Officer Central. 
Province, 10 years designing and 
implementation ofirrigation projects and Earth 
Dams and 15 years in Management of 
Agricultural Machinery and Development of 
Agricultural equipment. He is a registered 
professional Engineer with Engineers Board of 
Kenya and a Corporate member with Kenya 
Institute of Engineers. Trained in various fields 
including; Strategic leadership & Management; 
Senior Management; Irrigation design and 
Implem.entation; Design of Small dams & 
Water Pans; Management of Agricultural 
Machinery; Soil and Water Conservation etc. 
Prior to his appointment. 

He replaced Mr. Daniel Koech Bundotich who 
served in the same positon from 14th September 
2020 to 13th July 2021. 
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4. Edward Luvusi 

xii\Page 

2. CPA Anthony Kisaka - Born 1979 

- -l:e:Manager Finance and Strategy 

. I He is a Certified PublIc accountant and he holds 
aB.com and an MBA from University of 
Nairobi. He is a fir~ancial management and 
accounting, professional with over 15 years 
extEnsive. experience in financial pla1U1ing, 

. analys!.5, reporting, resource mobilization and 
IStrategic pImming. 

Hp hEads the Finance and strategy department. 

3. 	 Eng. George Odedeh - Born 1968 . 

\ ChiefManagel; Technical Services 

He holds a Masters of Business Administration 
and BSc Civil Engineering from the University 
of Nairobi. ' 
Registered with Engineers Board of Kenya and 
Corporate member of the Institution of 
Engineers of Kenya. 

He has 26 years professional experience in 
designs, supervision and management of 
water and sanitation systems. 
He heads the Infrastructure Development 
Department. 

Ag. Manager Human Resource and 
Administration 

Mr. Luvusi holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and 
I 	a post graduate Higher Diploma in Human 

Resource Management. 
He has over 28 years' experience in human 
resource Inanagelnent. 
Mr. Ixvusi is a member of Institute of Human 
Resource Management. 
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5. CPA Charles Tung'a - Born 1979 

6. Mr Joseph Makari 

~ , .'" '; 

7. CS Elizabeth Ngala - Born 1977 

xiii IP age 

Chief Manager Internal Audit & Risk 
Management 

He heads the Internal audit and Risk 
Management Department having joined the 
Agency on 01/10/2018. He holds an MBA & 13­
com in Finance from The University of Nairobi 
and is a CPA(K) and an active member of 
ICPAK IIA& KIM. 
He has over five years' experience from the 
Public Sedor and over fourteen years from the 
Private sector. He has is a trainer with a bias in 
governance, ll1ten1al audit, risk management 
and public finance management. 

IAg. Manager Procurement 

He holds a Bachelor of business management ­
purchasing and supplies. 

He heads the procurement section in an acting 

capacity. 


Corporation Secretary 
She was appointed on 2nd May 2016 as the 
Corporation secretary. She holds a Bachelor's of 
Laws (LLB) Hons. Degree, a Post Graduate 
Diploma in Law, and CPA Graduate. Elizabeth 
is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya. She 
is a Certified Public Secretary registered with 
the Institute of Certified Public Secretaries of 
Kenya. She is a Member of Law Society of 
Kenya. Elizabeth has wide experience in Legal, 
company secretarial and corporate governance 
having served in both private and public 

. sectors. She is responsible for providing 
guidance and support to the Board and driving 
the corporate governance agenda. 

.1 
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4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I I 8.m pleased to present to you the Lake Victoria North Water 

I 
Works Development Agency Fi.nancial Report for the year ended 30th June 2022. This was 

indeed a very good year for the Agency as is reflected in the ongoing infrastructural growth 

I 
momentum, and progress made towards estrhJlishing LVNWWDA as a critical player in the 

provision of water and sanitation services 111 its areas of jurisdiction. Lake Victoria North 

Water Works Development Agency (LVN\'VWDA) is one of the Nine Water Works 

I Development Agencies established under th~ Water Act 2016, Legal notice No. 28 of 26th 

April, 2019 amended with varii'ltions and modificaticn~ made through Legal Notice No.5 of 

I 4tb February, 2020 as part of the reforms which sought to improve governance and service 

provision in the water sector. The mandate for thE Agency is to undertake the development, 

I maintenance and management of the national public water works within its area. of 

jurisdiction which comprjse six (6) counties of Bungoma, Kakamega, Vihiga, Busia, Trans ­

I Nzoia, and Nandi. 

In undertaking our activities as pel the Agency's mandate, we are guided by a five-year 

I 
I Strategic Plan for the Period 2019-2024, the Water Act 2016 and the Constitution of Kenya 

2010. The Constitution places water sePJ=ces provision function under the county 

I 
governments, leaving Major infrastructural developments within the purview of the national 

government. 

During the period under review, the Agency continued "with its infrastructural investments 

I programmes geared towards expanding service pxovision to our people in order to keep up 

I 
with the growing demand for our services. 


xiv IP age 




I 

.1 
Lake Victoria North Water Works Developnr.ent Agency 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2022 I 
In the period under review, many new water supplies were completed and a number of old 

Iones rehabilitated and operationalised. The majority of these were implenlented under the 

KOleA and Belgium programme financed by the Government of Korea .and the Belgium IGovernment together with the Government of Kenya. In addition, there were a number of 

small water supplies, boreholes, sha11ovII' wells and darns financed by the national Igovernment which were also operationalis,,:d during the period. The bulk of these small water 

supply projects funded by the national 80.:1enunent majorly target the rural population which Iapparently form the bulk of our stakeholders. 

The enormous success as is depictec: in this statement is attributable to the sound corporate I governance and management infrastructure at the Agency. I thank the Government of Kenya 

through the Ministry of Water, Sani tation and Irrigation, our development partners and other I
stakeholders for their support and co-operation during the period. Finally, I also thank the 

Board of Directors for their continued commitment and support for providing the necessary I 
oversight that has steered LVNWWDA in the right dU'ection; the Management and staff for 

their dedication and hard work without which this exemplary performance could not have I 
been achieved. I look forward to continued support as we look fOlward to expanding the 


access to adequate, quality and affordable water and sanitation services within our area of 
 I 
service. 

I 

I 


Julius Bakasa Wasike, HSC I 
Chairman of the Board 

Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIV E OFFICER 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

The financial year ending 30th June 2022 was one of the most successful in the history of Lake 

Victoria North Water Works Development AgE:l1CY, as can be seen in the Financial Report. 

This year saw the completion of a number of major water supply projects in various locations

I within the Agency area 'Nith financial support from our various development partners 

including the KOICA (Korea), Belgium Governmem, African Development Bank (AIDB) and 

I the Republic of Kenya through the Ministry of Wah:'r; Sanitation and Irrigation. The Agency 

plans to improve water and services coverage by increasing access to potable water from 57% 

I to 70% and increasing sanitation covel"aBe from 33% to 40%, respectively. This will be 

achieved tln-ough expansions and rehabilitation of various water supply and sewerage

I systems across six counties. 

I In Vihiga County,The Agency completed the impleJl1entation ofVihiga Cluster Water Supply 

I 
Project at a cost of about Ksh. 2 Billion. The Belgium-Funded project was constructed in 

Maseno, Kaimosi, Luanda, Emuhaya and Mbaie for a combined additional capacity 12,500 

I 
m3/ day to add to the currently operationai 4,100 m 3/ day capacity. The project, which is 

currently operational, will serve a population of about 394,000 by the year 2033. The Agency 

I 
has requested for funds to implement Last Mile COILlectivity project to enhance connectivity 

of the bulk water supply. Vlhiga County Government has also earmarked for implementation 

of sewerage projects in the areas of Luanda, Maseno, Chavakali, Mbale, Kaimosi and

I Cheptulu - if funding is availed through The National Government. 

I xvi IP age 
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In Kakamega County, feasibility and tendering is ongoing for Kakamega -Bungoma Bulk 

Water Supply and if funding is availed design process would commence within the Financial 

Year. Commencement of works is expected within the current FY for Malava town water 

supply, Moi's Bridge - Matunda water supply capacity mid Improvement of Kakamega 

distribution, reticulation and customer cOlUlection (LMC). The Agency also has plans for a 

New Waste Water System in Mumias town. In Busia County, the Agency is overseeing 

implementation of the AfDB-funded Malaba Sanitation Project to be completed by December I 
2021, and Malaba Water Project (to be completed by October 2022) - all to serve a population 

of about 200,000 people. Further, designs are ready for construction of Busia Water Supply I 
based on Mt Elgon gravity scheme and Port Victoria -" Sisenye &Ruambwa water supply 

projects, upon funding allocation. I 
In Bungorna County, the Agency has commenced implementation the Korean-funded IChepyuk-Kibabii Water Supply Project for a cost of KSh. 400 Million to benefit about 60,000 


people. 111e project is being implemented alongside County Government of Bungoma as a 
 Ikey partner. Other projects designed for Bungoma County and awaiting funding include 


Webuye -Kakuywa water supply system, Bungorna-Kibabii Sewerage. The county will also 
 I
majorly benefit from the plmmed Kakamega-Bungoma Bulk Water Supply Project. For Nandi 


County, The Agency, will take over and run implementation of the on-going Nandi-Kilgoris 
 I 
Water Supply for Nandi South region under AfDE programme. A study has also been 


conducted on sewerage system in Kapsabet awaiting funding. The Agency, together with the 
 I 
Ministry of Water and Irrigation further plans to kick off implementation process for Keben 


Dam Water Supply System which will s;lpply water to Kapsabet and other towns. In Trans 
 I 
Nzoia County, the Agency has conducted studies for Kitale sewerage project awaiting 


funding from The National Goverm':lent. 
 I 
We will continue to work in partnership with all our stakeholders to ensure that the goals 


and aspirations set out in the Strategic Plan are achieved in an efficient and prudent manner. 
 I 

I 


Eng. Gongi S. P. 
Ag. Chief Executive Officer 
Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency I 
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I 6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

The Lake Victoria North Water WorksDevelopme:nt Agency Bbard is committed to the values 

I 
I and principles of good cOf-porate governance. The Board of DIrectors and Management of the 

Agency regard corporate goveniance as pivotal to the success of the Board and are committed 
to ensuring that the Board adheres to the highest standards ofconduct and accountability in 
accordance with the best practice m•.d principles of corporate governance. These principles 
are applied throughout all levels or the corporation. 

I 
I 

In the financial year under review, we col'tinued to achieve high levels of corporate 
governance by focusing on the following areas: 

i. 	 Continuing to implement our strategy for the long-term prosperity of the 
agency;

I ii. Timely and relevallt disclosures ~nd iinancial reporting to our stakeholder for 

a clear unden,tanding of our operations and performance; 

I iii. Ensuring execution of strong audit jj!"ocedures, audit independence and 
continuously enforcing strong internationally recognised accounting 
principles;

I iv. Focus on clearly defined board and rmmagemel1t du'ties and responsibilities; 

I 
v. Enhancing directors' competencies through induction for directors and on­

going trainings for all dirEdorsi 
vi. 	 Focusing on compliance with relevant laws and upholding the highest levels of 

integrity in the organiz<ltion's culture and practices.

I 
I 

Board charter 
The Board Charter is critical to the agency's gwernance framework, and offers guidance on 
matters including but not limited to the followhg; 

I 	 The separation of the roles, functions, responsibilities and powers of the Board and its 

I 
individual members; Powers del.=gated to the Board conuniuees; Matters reserved for final 

decision-making and approval by the Board; 

Policies and practices of the Board on matters of corporate governance, directors' declarations 

I and conflict of interest, conduct of Board and Board committee meetings; and induction, 

ongoing training and performance evaluation of the Beard and its r:ommittees. 

I The Charter is not a substitute or a replacement of any laws and regulations that govern the 
running of the company. 

I 
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The role and responsibilities of the Board I:The primary role of the Board remains to guide the agency towards sustainable long-term 
success through the exercise of objective and informed judgement in determining the strategy 

of the company, having the best team in place to execute that strategy, monitoring business Iperformance and maintaining an effective framework of controls to mitigate risks facing the 

business. 

I 
The Board of Directors collectively determine the Board's mission, vision, purpose, core 

values, set strategy, approve organization structure and policies, monitor the attainment of 

board's objectives to meet its obligat:.ons to stakeholders and enhance its corporate image. I· 
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Board's assets and ensure reliability of I 
financial information, guarantee adequate internal control systems designed to safeguard the 
Board's assets, appointm::opt of senio:," management and ensuring effective communication Iwith stakeholders. 

Separation of powers and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer (CEO) I 
The separation of the functions of the chairman (a non-executive director) and the CEO 

(executive director) supports and ensures the independence of the board and management. 

The balance of power, increased· accountability, clear definition of responsibilities and I 
improved decision-making are attained tlwough a clear distinction between the non­
executive and executive roles. The chairman's responsibilities include the operation, I 
leadership and governance of the Board. The chief executive officer's roles and 

responsibilities remains the day-to-day management of the company's business and 

overseeing the implementation of strategy and policies approved by the Board. I 
How the Board works I
The Board is solely responsible for its agenda. However, it is the responsibility of the 

chairman all.d the corporation secretary, working closely with the chief executive officer, to 

come up with the annual Board work pla'1 and an agenda for the board meetings. I 
The Board meets at least four times a year and the meetings are structured in a way that Iallows for open discussions. 

Comprehensive Board papers are prepared and circulated to all directors for all substantive I 
agenda items at least ten days pri,x to the meeting. This allows time for the directors to 

undertake an appropriate review of the Board papers to facilitate full and effective Idiscussions at the meetings. The submissions ar:d notification period may be waived should 

any urgent and critical matters arise within the ten-day period to the date of the meeting. 

I 
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I Members of the senior m,anagement team may be invited to attend the Board meetings if 

deemed necessary to make pre~entC\.~ions on theh' areas ~(responsibility. This serves as an 
opporttIDity to give the directo~s'gl'~atei' insights into th€'ir business areas. 

I 
I 

The directors are respo~sible for ensuring that the business strategies proposed are fully 
discussed, critically reviewed and appropriate directive given. This enables the directors to 
promote the success of the Agency for thebtnefit of its stakeholders t with consideration of, 

among other matters, the interests of employees, the fostering of relationships with 

I stakeholders. 

I Board Committees 

In line with guidelines issued l"y the Government, the Board has delegated its authority to 

committees to deal with specific aspects of its respor.sibWti(;s. These committees have specific 

I terms of reference and reports'to the full Board meeting. LVNWWDA has the following Board 
committees: ­

I 
I i. Finance and Administration Committee, whose main duties are: - To review financial 

statements, cumual budgets, Procurement Plan, staff remuneration and terms of service; 
appointments and disciplinary actions for senior staff; genera] welfare of the Board's 

I 
employees, legal compliance, rCT and corporate affairs. The Committee held six (6) 
ordinary meetings. Further, the Board is authorized by Mwongozo, code of governance 

to constitute special committees to deal with specific ITtatters for a defined term period 

but retains oversight authority over sllch committees. The Board mandated the committee 

I to hold two (2) speciai meetings during the financial year. 

MEETINGSNUMBERNAME OF ! NUMBER I MEETINGSISINO 

I OF i ATTENDED ATTENDEDIRECTOR OF 
iI 

DSPECIALORDINARY 
I i 

iTvIEETINGS MEETINGS 

2 2Samuel K. Kiptorus!1. 6 I 6I 
i 

-.,I 0~ 2Rose Nyakwana 6I 

I 3. 2 1Wangira Mediatrice 46 J 
I4. 0Daniel Koech 26 1 
I 

Bundotich

I 5. Eng. Samson Peter 

IGongi 

I 
 6. ' Paul Asele 


7. AIU1e Desma 

Chilande 

226 
I 

2 256 

2 106 

I 
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it 	 Governance, Risk and Audit Commi~tec, whose main dutyis, fisk management and to 

ensure that the systems of internal control are effective and complied with. The 1 
Conunittee held four (4) ordinary mr-:etings during the financial year. 

NAME OF DIRECTOR TOTAL NUMBER MEETINGS 

SjNO OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

1. Hon. Manyala Keya 4 3 
f 

2. Samuel Kiptorus 4 4 

3. Rose Nyakwana 4 1 

4. Paul Asele : 4 3 

5. i Zipporah Kaari Matasi 4 1 
6. Anne Desma C. ChilandE' 4 1 

iii. Techrucal and Environmental Committee, whose focus is on issues arising from the 1 
Agency's stewardship of essential water infrastructure and has a duty of reviewing the 

1 
1 
1 
1 

conditions and performance of technical assets including projects. The committee is also 


tasked with safeguarding the enviromnent. The Committee held four (4) ordinary 
 1 
meetings during the financial year. 

--	 1ITOTAL NUMBERNAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS 
SjNO OF MEETINGS ATTENDED 

1. Mediatrice Wangira 4 3 
-

2. Hon. Manyala Key. 4 3 
4. Paul Asele 4 4 
5. Zipporah Kaari Matasi 4 2 

-
6. Anne Desma C. Chilande 4 2 

i 7. Eng. Samson Peter Gongi 4 4 

1 

1 

1 


Full Board 1 
The Board of Directors held Six (6) ordinary meetings and one (1) special board meeting 

attended by the directors in strict compliance with Mwongozo and applicable Laws. The 
meetings of the Board are tabulated in the tables below. 1 


1 

1 

I. 
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SINO NAME 
r 

.OF NO. OF FULL 
DIRECTOR FULL BOARD 

'BOARD I ME£TINGS 
MEETINGS IATfENDED ' 
, 

NO. OF 
SPECIAL 
FULL 
BOARD 
MEETINGS 

-.+1) Hon.. Julius Bakasa I 
~-l

6.. 6 3 

-t--Wasike . 

2) Hon. Manyala Keya : 6 4 3 

3) Mediatrice Wangira I~ 6 4 3 
- ,-,-- ­

4) Rose Nyakwana 6 1 3 

5) Paul Asele 6 5 3 
-

6) Samuel Kiptorus 6 6 3 
---. 

7) Daniel Koech I 6 1 3 
Bundotirh 

i -.- ­
8) Eng. Samson Peter 6 6' 3 

Gongi 
•. 

9) Zipporah Kaari 6 3 3 
, Matasi I 

, 

I 
10) Anne Desma C. 6 i 3 3 

Chilande 
--"""" 

SPECIAL 
FULL 
BOARD 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

, 3 

2 

2 

1 

2 

3 

1 

3 

2 

2 

Role of the Corporation Secretary 
Providir..g a central source of gui.:tance and a.dvke to the Board, and the agency, on matters 
of statutory and regulatory compliance and good go"ernance; 

Providing the Board and the directors individually with guidance on how their 
responsibilities should be discharged in the best interests of the Agency; 

Facilitating the induction training of new directors and assisting with the directors' 
professional development as required. This i.ncludes identifying and facilitating continuous 
board education; 

In consultation with the CEO and the chairman, ensuring: effective flow of information within 
the Board and its committees and between senior mdnagement and non-executive directors. 
This includes timely compilation and distribut~on of board papers and minutes. 
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Guiding the Agency in taking the initiative to not only disclose corporate governance matters I. 
as required by law, cut also information of material importance to decision-making by 

stakeholders; 1 
Keeping formal records of Board disCl:&sions and following up on the timely execution of 

agreed actions. 1 
Conflict of Interest 
The directors are obligated to fully disclose to the Board any real or potential conflict of 1 
interest, which comes to any director's attention, whether direct or indirect. The statutory 

duty to avoid situations in which the directors have or may have interests that conflict with 
 1those of the Agency has been observed by the Board in the financial year under review. 

All business transactions with all pa~·ties, directors or their related parties are canied out at I. 
arm's length. An acknowledgement that should it come to the attention of a director that a 

matter concerning the Agency may result in a conflict of interest, obligates the director to 

declare the same and exclude himself I herself from any discussion or decision over the 
matter in question. 

1 
Appointment and removal of directors 

The appointments of the Board memr:,z!'s and removal are asprovided for under the Water 

Act, 2016 Section 66(1) and the First Schedule. 
 1 
The Corporation Secretary ensures that a record of the appointment letter, gazette notice and 1 
written acceptance by the Board member are kept in the personal file of the Board member 

Ethics and conduct 1 
The Agency's directors and employees are expected to act with honesty, integrity and fairness 


in all their dealings with one another and with stakeholders and to respect the diverse 
 1 
cultures of the Kenyan people. The Agency has a code of conduct that binds both directors 


and employees. When joining the Agency, every employee is provided with a copy of the 

code and must commit to abide by its requirements aspart of the employment contract. 
 1 
Succession plan 1
The Cabinet Secretary, Millistry of Water and Sanitation following the advice from State 

Corporation AdVisory Committee (SCAC) is responsible for ensuring there is a succession 

plan in appointment and renewal of term of members of the Board. An update on the 
 1 
composition of the Board of Directors, expiry of their respective terms appointments is send 


to the Ministry of Water and Sanitation and SCAC periodically to ensure timely replacement 
 1of Board members. 
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I Whistle blowing policy . 

I 
The Agency has a whistle 1:5l0w'ihg policy that plOvides for repo~·ting of unethical practises 

without fear of retaliation f~om fie sLlspected individuals. 

The whistlebJowing policy provides a platform for employees, suppliers, contractors and 

I other stakeholders to rais2 concerAs regarding any suspected wrong doin:g, and the policy 
details how such concerns are 1'lddressed. 

I Board induction and h'aining 

I 
Board members undergo regular training and education to enable them fulfil their 
responsibilities. All Board members receive an induction upon joining. This provides an 
overview of the company, new developments in the environment in which the company 
operates, accounting and fin~'lncial r::porting developments, as well as any regulatory 

I . changes. 

I Board Evaluation 

The Board undertakes 811 annual evaluation of its performance as an enHty, its committees, 
the chairman and each individual director. 1"his is aimed at eliabling the Board and its 

I members and the committees to gauge their per.cormance and identify areas of improvement. 
State Corporation Advisory Committee (SCAC) facilitates the process. 

I Board remuneration 
Remuneration of Board l~lemb~rs is guided by relevant government circulars which 

I recommend payment of allowances. The Board's cha;trnan is paid monthly Honorarium. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Financial Performance 

1During the 2021/22 FY, LVNWWDA received an allocation of Kshs 528 million and received 
a total of Kshs. 236 million from the Min:stry of Water, Sanitation and Irrigation broken down 
into Kshs 128 million recurrent and Ksh:::, 108 million Developinent. The difference between 1the allocated and received being amounts cut through supplementary budgets. The Agency 
also received Kshs. 29 million from' V'Vater Service Providers being loan repayment and 
settlement of levy arrears. 1 
The entity also earned Kshs 1,730,944 being miscellaneous income. 

1
The total income for the year was Kshs 298,077,655 against an expenditure of Ksh 

368,477,209 before depreciation. LVNWWDA transferred a total deficit of Kshs 355,851,964 

after incorporating depreciation, interest due and provisions. 
 1 
Revenue comparison 

(J) -
..c 
(f) 

~ 
...... 
c: 
:l 

1Revenue Comparison 
- ; 

1 
,," 

0 --- - ------ -' 
Ei i 1<t:: ! ,-

; 1 
Recurrent grant Grants for project costs Other Incomes 

Revenue 1 

1 


! FY 21/22 :. FY 20/21 

1 
1 
1 
1 
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I Expenditure compari~on 
The chart below gives a breakdown of the expenditure comparison for the years 2020/21 and 
2021/22:

I 
Expenditure Comparison

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Expenditure Category 

I III FY 21i22 Ie: FY ~~ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I xxvi IP age 



• 


I 

Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency 
An11ual Report and Financial Statements I
for the year ended 30 June 2022 

Asset development I
LVNWWDA developed assets worth Kshs 40,537,590 in the 2021/22 FY most of which are in 
work in progress. The chart below gives ?l breakdown of capital works in progress during the 
year; I 


Asset Development 

WaSSIP SoK Programmes Belgium Funding 

Devebpment Programme 

c; FY 21/22 Ie FY 20/21 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 


Major Risks 
L VNWWDA is faced with the following risks: 

i) Liquidity risks due to non-repayments of loans by W5Ps. 
ii) Delays in receipt of projected revenues 
iii) Delays in project execution 

xxvii IP age 
 I 

I 


I 



• 
I 

Lake Vic~oria North Water Vv'orks Deve.lopnlent Ageacy


I Annual Report and Financial Statements 

for the year ended 30 June 2022 ' 

I Projects implemented or were ongoing in the year 
Developing llmovative and st,lstainable water servires solutions that transform life and 
inspire progressunderpim: our, corporate mission. In the period under review, and as part of

I implementation of our strategic plan, LVNWWDA cuntinued to implement the following key 
projects, during the 2021./2022 FY: 


L Vihiga Cluster Water Project .


I ii. Sirisia - Chwele (i(OICA II -:-- Chepyuk-Kibabii Complex) Water Supply project 
iii. Malava Water Supply projects 

I Compliance with statutory requirements 

The regulatory environment remains an area of significance to our operations. L VNWWDA 

I continued to ensure compliance with Constitution of Kenya 2010 (CoK 2010), the PFM Act, 

I 
the State Corporations Act, the Water Act 2016 and all the relevant govermnent circulars as 
issued from time to time. All the statutory dedu-:tions and other requirements were submitted 
to the relevant authorities in time. 

I Key challenges 
L VNW\t\lDA continued the in-,plementation of its rulming projects amidst of several 
challenges including: 

I i. Inadequate budgeta!'y allocations and budget cuts without further reference to 
ourselves which resutted to low disbursement Ul the year 

I 
ii. Cash flow challenges owing to delayed remhtances from the Ministry of Water and 

Sanitation 
iii. Non-remittance by WSPs of the amounts owed by them. 
iv. Staff shortages as a result of staff seconded to sister Agencies. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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8. ENVIRONMENT AND SUST AINABILITY REPORTING I 
Introduction 

Sustainable development is all about ensuring a better quality of life for everyone, now and I 
for generations to come. This can be achieved through the three strands of social equity which 

recognizes the needs of everyone, maintenance of stable levels of economic growth and I 
employment, and using natural resources prudently, whilst pi'otecting, and if possible 

enhancing, the environment. Sustainable or ecological development is a process of change in I 
which the exploitation or resources, the direction of investments, the orientation of 

technological development, and instituticnal change are made consistent with the future as I 
well as present needs", 

I 
Sustainability requires continuous tedu1010gical, economic and social progress of continuous 

improvement that respects the limits of the Earth's ecosystems, and meets the needs and I 
aspirations of everyone for a better quality of life, now and for future generations to come. 

Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency commits to meeting our I 
stakeholder's present and future requirements through a collaborative culture, which 


provides the capability to provide services and knowledge allowing systematic change to 
 I 
take place whilst reinforcing mutual]y desired social, economic and environmental outcomes. 


LVNWWDA recognizes the importance of conducting operations in a manner that meets 
 I 
existing needs without comprom.ising the ability of the future generation to rneet their needs; 


therefore, it carries out its operations in a manner that ensures the economic life of the 
 I 
community in which it operates. It is LVNWWDA's policy to ensure that all the activities 

Iundertaken meet and exceed the sociat economic and environmental expectat~ons of 

stakeholders. LVNWWDA believes that etbicalleadership and corporate citizenship should Idirect the strategy and operations to build sustainable business. 

LVNWWDA executes the objectives through the following:­ I(a) Our people, values and processesj 

(b) Stakeholder engagement; I(c) Protecting the environment 

I 
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I (a) Our People, Values and Processes 

The staff of L VNWWDA are tIll? most critical asset The Agency recruits, retains and invests 
' 

in the 	best talent in the market. Our success will continue to be highly dependent on theI 	
. 

performance and accounta~ili~y ,of our s(aff. 

I 
Diversity and Equal Opportunity 

I LVNWWDA endeavours to have gender and cultural diversity in our ep1ployee mix and for 

all qualified persons an equal opportunity employer. This has created an inclusive 

I environment where individuals and teams harness strengths in diversity to maximize 

potential and excel in performance. 

I Our Culture and Values 

The staff and directors are comnutted in upholding our core values in fulfilling our mandate. 

I LVNWWDA' s leadership has ~reated an enabling er:vironment w here board of directors and 

staff are accountable for their actions based cOlYJrate culture of living our values. The 

I LVNWWDA is an open and transparent communilY, striving for quality services that are 

environment friendly, embedded on good governance and has maintained an open and

I collaborative engagement. 

I 
Employee Welfare 

I 
The Agency project implementation complif's with Environment, Safety and Health as 

required by Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA). The Agency has 

I 
Management Conunittee that develop and imp;ement health and Safety requirements in the 

workplace, and the workplace is registered as required by law. The Agency conducted last 

I 
assessment audits including post Covid -19 i:1 December 2020 as per the section 36 of the 

Factories and Other places of work, legal notice no. 59 and Section 6(3) and 6(4) of the 

I 
Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA). 


Health Care· 


I 
LVNWWDA continued to finance staff with medica! care through a comprehensive medical 

cover for all staff and their nuclear families Huough a competitively sourced medical cover. 

Annual health talks and health tests Were undertaken in the year. The Agency continued to 

I deduct, and submit National Hospital Insurance Fund dnes for staff during the year and 

therefore they utilized the services entitled therein. 
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Labour Relations I,
LVNWWDA continued to encourage open communications with an aim of fostering a 

positive work environment; all employees were encouraged to participate actively in the free I 
flow of questions, answers and ideas. There are meetings held every Monday for all staff, as 

well as quarterly meetings for all staff, Appraisal and Counselling interviews and Attitude I 
surveys. 

Staff Training and Development I 
To ensure that L VNWWDA not only attracts but also retains the best talent, the Agency aims 

to nurture employee's careers by making relevant opportunities accessible and helping them 1 
to develop skills, knowledg~ and experience in different functions or specialization. Through 


the appraisal, system staff training and development needs were identified and the same 
 I 
formed part of the staff training needs 3f::Jessment report, which was implemented within the 


year. 
 1 
In its Annual Budget, LVNWWDA allocated a budget towards education, training and 


professional development. Individual staff budget allocation was equitably done based on 
 I 
their training needs and job level. LVNWWDA also supports membership to professional 


bodies by financing of continuous professional development (CPD) trainings to ensure staff 
 I 
are in good standing with their respective professional bodies. Additionally, LVNWWDDA 


continued implementing on-the- job training through workplace projects and job enrichment. 
 1 
LVNWWDA supports staff furthering their academ.ic growth through flexible working time 


and giving them study leave. 
 1 
Employee Engagement 


The staff are committed to the realization of the LVNWWDA's mandate. Focus is on 
 I 
delivering an employee experience where staff feel strongly connected to the realization of 


Agency's mandate. 
 I 
Occupational Health and Safety IGood health and safety standards' are ideal and. remain an individual and corporate 


responsibility for the staff and the Agency. The Agency iscommitted to proactively managing 
 Iall health and safety risks associated with its mandates. 

During the year, the Board organized several workshops to sensitize staff and evaluated the I
work environment to ensure it meets the set standards. An am1Ual health and safety audit 
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I was conducted at the Agency's premises. The audit was carried out with the view of 

evaluating compliance of the work pla~e ana the associated operations with the provisions 

I of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 2007. 

Specifically, the following ar~as vvere assessed:­

I • Information security management 

Work place information; 

I Management of Occupational Safety and Health policies; 

Work place safety, Health and Welfa~'e conditions including safety, occupational 

I hygiene conditions as well as general cOl1ditions; and 


Emergency response plan. 


I Zero Tolerance to Corruption 

L VNWWDA has a zero tolerance policy towards corruption. During the year L VNWWDA 

I , . , ~ 

I 
carried out corruption perception risk assessment and rnitigation measures. In order to 

enhance integrity in public procurement, LVNWWDA posted all advertisements and awards 

I 
to the agencies website and advertised open tenders in the papers for everybody to 

participate and invited all interested parties to come and \>\itness the opening. 

I 
To promote high standards of ethical culture, LVNWWDA continued to have centralised tea 

breaks to foster teamwork, wlity and continue us engagement. C~rried out a sensitization to 

I 
all staff on national values and corporate governance. The Board of Directors were inducted 

in the year, trained on Mwongozo, and each signed Code of Conduct. 

I 
Ethics and Integrity 

The Agency has in place Code of Conduct and Ethics and Corruption Prevention Policies. 

I 
This policy requires employees and members of the Beard to conduct business with integrity, 

in accordance with the Public Officers Ethics Act an\] Ensure the enforcement of corruption 

prevention plans. Accordingly, curruption preventiol"', i;-aining, risl~ ::\ssessments and surveys 

I form part of the Performance Contract between the GoverlUl1ent of the Republic of Kenya 

(through Ministry of Water & Irrigation, state department for Water) and the Board of 

I Directors. 

The Board is cognizant of the fi:1ancial crime risks that arise from internal and external 

I sources. L VNWWDA conducts business in compliance with high ethical standards of 

business practice. To this end, LVNWWDi. conducted various training courses on 
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anticorruption and financial fraud practices. The agency also has in place various systems 

and procedures, which are implemented and monitored on regular basis. 

I 
(b) Stakeholder Engagement 

LVNWWDA is cognizant that ,there are various people and groups who may be affected by I 
the decisions it makes or can influence the implementation of its decisions and therefore we 

continued engaging different stakeholders in order to understand their concerns and to I 
respond to them appropriately. These engagements have assisted by providing feedback on 

the policies, procedures and ways of working. I 
Reporting I 
LVNWWDA is committed. to transparency in reporting of its activities to its stakeholders. 


This is done 'regularly through the print and electronic media, published annual reports and 
 I 
financial statements. 

I 
Customer Focus 

L VNWWDA is committed to me2ting stakeholder requirements to their satisfaction by I 
ensuring effective and efficient use of resources. It encourages continual improvement of its 


services and processes. 
 I 
A service charter was rolled out, and cascaded to all departments and staff and they are 


displayed at various strategic places in the organization. The compliance to the service charter 
 I 
is monitored on a regular basis, and plans are made on how to reduce or eliminate the non-


compliances. 
 I 
Grievance Mechanisms and Procedures I 
The Agency has put in place a grievance handling mechanisms for both the directors and 


employees. The employees' issues' are dealt with by the Human Resources and 
 I 
Administration Committee of the Board. The Agency has set up a complaints handling 


mechanism which is handled by the management. The Agency submits quarterly reports on 
 I 
complaints to the Commissioner of Administrative Justice who evaluates the extent of 


compliance with the procedures and issues a certificate. During FY 2018/19, the Agency 
 I 
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achieved ~8% compared to ai1 achievernent of 92% previous year in the performance contract 

evaluation on resolution ofpublk complaints.. 

I (c) Protecting our environment· 

I Environmental and social' sustainability 

Introduction 

I Background 
Environmental and Social Sustainability refers to concerted efforts to mitigate against 


I environmental degradation and social impacts. It is the maintenance of the factors and 


practices that contribute to the quality of envirolUn~nt on a long term basis as well acceptable 


I social norms over the long term. It involves making, deCIsions and taking action that are in 


the interests of protecting the natural and social environment, with particular emphasis on


I preserving the capability of the environment to support human life; and social wellbeing of 


conununities. 


I LVNWWDA as a state corporation with key functions of Planning, development, 


rehabilitation and expansion of water and sanitation services infrastructure is cognizant of 


I the possible impacts ( both positive and negative) resulting from interaction of the 


organization's activities with both physical and social environment. 

I As such, LVNWWDA is committed to environn1cntal conservation and protection as well as 

safeguarding of health ane! safety of workers within the premises and projects. 11uough the

I integrated Envirorul1ent, Health and Safety policy ~t~ tement, the organization commits to 

protecting the environment, preservirig the health an'i safety of employees and communities, 

I 
I and ensuring safe development of water and sanitation infrastructure within the its area of 

jurisdiction. 

I 
Pollution prevention, regulatory compliance, stakeholder engagement, public consultation 

and continual improvement are the key elements, which· underpins LVNWWDA 

I 
environmental and social sustainability. 

The objective of the LVNWWDA's environmental sustainability is therefore to promote 

sustainable development within our area of jurisdiction by ensuring environmental 

I 
 protection, social equity, and economic development. 
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Approach 

L VNWWDA environmental sustainabHlty is guided by the Constitution of Kenya, 2010, 

Environmental Management and Coordination (Amendment) Act of 2015 which is the 

principal legislation governing the 'conduct of environmental management in Kenya. Other 

legislation related to natural resources such as Water Act, forest Act, Land planning Act, 

National land policy etc, as well as the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2010 are also used 

as guidelines. The Agency has developed International Best Practices to enhance Performance 

Standards as outlined in the African Development Bank (AIDB) or World Bank Guidelines 

through 

a) Operational Environmental Policy 

b) Resettlen'1ent Action Policy 

c) Public Participation Policy 

d) Electronic Waste Policy 

LVNWWDA thereforej c(;:l'1plies with the environmental requirements of International 
Development Funding agencies such as VoJodd Bank and African Development Bank (AfDB) 
among others. ' 

I Table 1: E~vironmental and Environ;lent Safeguards \ Description of safeguards 

Social Framework (ESF) 
 Instrument!.' 

World Bank-~-·- ----------~--------------------------~ 

Envi:::omnental and Social ESS1: Assessment and 
Standards (ESS) Management of Environmental 

and Social Risks and Impacts 
ESS2: Labor and Working 
Conditions 
ESS3: Resource Efficiency and 
Pollution Prevention and 
Management. 
ESS4: Community Health and 
Safety 
ESS5: Land Acquisition, 
Restrictions on land use and 
Involuntary Settlement. 
ESS6: Biodiversity Conservation 
and Sustainable management of 
living Natural Resource. 

I ESS7: Indigenous peoples / Sub­
. I Saharan African Historically 
I underserved Traditional Local 

L-______________.l--___._________~ Communities. 
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I r---~--------:-.-""T--.-.-~-- ·------1 ESSS: Cult~lI·al Heritage 

ESS9: Financial Intermediaries 
ESS10: Stakeholders

I I Engagement and Information 
i Disclosure. 

-"""'-Y;digenous Peoples I Provide indigenous people with

I Policy Eram2work (IPPF) ·1 culturally appropriate benefits 

I 
I that recognize distinct 

I i circumstances that expose 
I indigenous people to inability to 
i defend their rights. 

Resettlement Policy IProvide_s guidelines on howI Framework (RPF) projects will avoid, manage or 
mitigate all related 

I 
 '----------____ .____ displacements._ ...............................______-...!
..... ____ •._._____L..........:..L ......... 


I Environmental sustainability activities 

I 
Environmental sustainability planning 
Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency has developed Environmental 

I 
Management System with objectives and polic.ies that are relevant to its context, products, 

services and any interested parties for the development, maintenance and management of 

water and sanitation infrastructures. Our procedures are defined within Environmental

I Management System 14001:2015 framework that assist the Agency in achieving the 

environmental goals and consistent controls of its operati')ns. 

I Environmental Unit 

I 
The Agency has developed operational enviromneiltal policy, Resettlement Action Plan 

Policy, Public participation and E-Waste Policy to erlsure strict adherence to the constitutional 

I 
requirement and specifically Environme:,taI Managt!l11ent and Coordination Act of 1999 with 

relevant regulations. The agency has adequately in..:orporated the international good 

practices as outlined in Environment and Social Safeguards requirement by World Bank and 

I 
 African Development Bank with respect to all relevt'.l1t Safeguard Standards. 


The Agency develops annual Quality and Environmental Objectives to ensure 100% 


I compliance with Environment and Social Management Plans in the project cycle, and are 


realised tlu·ough environmental objectives targ~ts and programs. 


I LVNWWDA participatory approach has ensured best delivered projects supported by 


international Financial partners. However, imple~11entil1g international safeguards has 
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exposed gaps in our local regulatory frameworks causing project delays, litigations and cost I
of claims. 

Pollution prevention and abatement 
LVNWWDA Complies wit:'l various le"g;islation related to prevention and abatement of I 
pollution such as EMCA (waste ma':lagement) regulations, EMCA (water quality) Iregulations) EMCA (noise reduction) regulations, Water Act (water rules). 


Programmes are in place to ensure that all operations are in compliance with these 
 Iregulations. For instance, water abstraction permitting, effluent discharge plmming and 

licensing, and workplace certification among others. IThe boreholes drilled within this reporting period were authorized and permitted by WRMA. 

e All sewerage h'eatment plants are designed to improve quality of final discharge into I
the receiving surface waters. These facilities are issued with effluent discharge permits 

based on effluent discharge and control plan. I 
to 

I
All ongoing construction projects are supervised and monitored to ensure proper 

implementation of project specific environmental management plans and 

environmental conservation. 

.. All motor vehicles are being. regularly serviced as per manufacturer's I, 
recommendations. 


Climate change mitigation and adaptation 
 I 
LVNWWDA implements projects with measures to adapt and/or mitigate against effects of 


climate change. L VNWWDA is drilling and equipping boreholes to provide alternative water 
 I 
sources in ASALs to help communities in those areas adapt to water scarcity which is 


associated with climate change. 
 I 
LVNWWDA is also implementing medium and small dams to provide water storage thereby Iproviding adaptation measures to water scarcity resulting from climate change. Community 


projects focusing on rainwater harvesting and development of water pans also provide 
 Iadditional water storage to help communities and schools deal with water scarcity. 


The Agency also undertakes tree planting within the area of jurisdiction as a climate change 
 Iadaption measure to act as' carbon sinks. The Agency adopts technologies that mitigate 


climate change like solar energies, gravity or non-motorized facilities as well as supporting 
 I 
research and development to reduce ozone depletion during the project cycles. 
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I Promoting Environmental protection and conservation through partnerships with 

stakeholders 

I LVNYVW"DA continually work- together w~th partne!'~; such as County governments, 

community members, VvRA,:. NEMA, ,'Wat~r Resource Users Associations, local 

I . . . 

administrations etc. withhl its area of jurisdictIon to enhance participation of stakeholder and 

sustainability of projects. 

I Environmental education and awareness 
LVNWWDA through its corpol:ate CO!1L'llUl'Ucation section develop and disseminate 

I information on water conservation and rain water harvesting through fliers, brochures, print 

media, radio and TV. 


I Social sustainability activities 


Sodo-economic impact assessment 

I Enviromnent and Social ~,afeguard8 framework is now conceived as being the tool for 

identifying and £nanaging the social issues of project development, and includes the effective 

I engagement of affected con:.mUl'Uties in partidpatory processes of identification, assessment 

and management of social impacts. Social Saieguards contributes to the ongoing 

I management of social issues throughout the whole project development cycle, from 

conception to post-closure. L VNWWDA focuses on social impact assessment to enhance the 

I benefits of projects to inlpactE:d communities. "n,is IS necessary fi,)r the project to earn its 

'social license to operate; Enhancing benefits covers a range of issues, including- modifying

I project infrastructure to ensure it can service local community needs; providing social 

investment funding to support local social sustainable development and community

I visioning processes to establish strategic. c:omrnunity development plans; a genuine 

commitment to maximizing opportunities for local content (i.e. jobs for local people and local 

I 
I procurement) by removing barriers to entry to nal<e it possible for local enterprises to supply 

goods and services; and by providing training and support to local people. 

I 
Where people's assets and properties are affected, the LV~JWWDA ensures that appropriate 

Resettlement Action Policy (RAP) is applied hence, there is prior and informed consent from 

I 
the project affected persons, there is prompt and clde'1uate compensation for any loss; and 

where people are resettled to enable a project to proceed, the Agency ensures that their post­

resettlement livelihoods are restored and enhanced. 
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Other Social sustainability activities include: 
 I, 
1. Stakeholder engagement and public participation plan 

ii. Livelihood and restoration plans I 
iii. Environmental Commitment Plan by the Contractor 

Environment and social sustainability management systems I 
LVNWWDA aims at managing the variol~~ environmental and social aspects associated with 

different projects under implemen!atlon by developing al)d implementing project specific I 
management and monitoring plans, The Unit conducts environment and social monitoring 


for both development projects and operat;on projects under the County governments. 
 I 
Environmental and social Management Plans I 
An Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) provides the remedial measures to 


be taken, the responsible person(s) for execution, and the monitoring activities to be 
 I 
undertaken during the construction, operational and decommissioning phases. 


An indication of the timing fOf implementation and the cost involved is also provided. It is a 
 I 
practical and achievable plan of management to ensure that any· environmental impacts 


during the design, pimming and construction phase are ininimized. All contractors working 
 I 
with LVNWWDA submits an ESMP for their respective projects to LVNWWDA for review 


and are taken through orientation on ESMP, Policies and regulatory requirements. 
 I 
LVNWWDA ensures that the ESMP is impIem.ented at each phase of the project in order to 


minimize harmful occurrences to the environment, community members and the employees. 
 I 
Health and safety management plans 


In accordance with the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 2007, a Health 
 I 
and Safety Management Plan (HESMP) is prepared for each project being implemented by ILVNWWDA. The objective of a HESMP is to establish safe working practices and standards, 


which are employed on site and to detail the organizational requirements and obligations of 
 Ithe contractor. 


Grievance Redress Mechanism. 
 ILVNWWDA recognizes the rieed for a Grievance Redress mechanism (GRM) throughout the 


project implementation period to identify disputes in good time and allow them to be 
 I
resolved in a h"ansparent a,nd accountable manner. Compensation based disputes are issues 
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I likely to occur during and after project-implementation period, hence the need for GRM 

system. Project financing institutions gui~elii1es 'ar,d policies also call for appropriate and 

I accessible grievance handling' mechanisms for. project-affected persons. Appropriate 

Grievance Redress System is developed and maintained in the entire project cycle. 

I Conclusion 

LVNWWDA is committed to EnvirOlunental Conservation and safeguard of the Health and 

I Safety of employees as well as communities 8ffected by the organizations operations. The 

organization continuously works towards compliance with the ISO and international good

I practices as well as achieving the environmental sustainability targets. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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9. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS I 
The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year 
ended 30th June 2022, shows the state of affairs of the Agency. I 
Principal activities 
The principal activity of the Agency is 'to develop, manage and maintain water and sewerage 
infrastructure. I 
Results I 
The results of the Agency for the year ended 30th June, 2022 are set out on page 1. 

Kshs I 
Surplus/ (Deficit) before depreciation and finance costs (70,399,554) 

ILess: Depreciation (285,452,410) 
Surplus/ (Deficit) before finance costs im851(964) 

INet deficit for the period 
The Agency registered a Deficit of Kshs. 355,851,964 during the year. 

IDirectors 

The members of the Board of Directors who served during theyear are shown on page VI to 

IX. 

Surplus Remission 

The Agency did not make any surplus during the period and hence no remittance to the 

Consolidated Fund. 


Auditors IThe Auditor General is re$ponsible for the statutory audit of the Agency in accordance with 

Article 229 of the ConstitutIon of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015. 


IBy Order of the Board 

I 

I 


S Eliza\91~ Ngala 

Corporation Secretary 


I 
Date: ..................... .. 


I 
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I 10. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

I 

Section 81 of tpe Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State 


Corporations Act 446, require the Directors tq prepare financial statements in respect of the, 


which give a true and fair view ,A the state cf affairs of the Agency at the end of the financial 


year/ period and the operating results of the Agency for that year / pedod. The Directors are


I also required to ensure that the Agency keeps proper accounthlg records which disclose with 


I 

reasonable accuracy the financial position of t''1e Agency. The Directors are also responsible 

for safeguarding the assets of the Agency. 


I 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Agency's financial 

statements, which give a true and fair view of the :::tate of affairs of the Agency for and as at 


I 

the end of the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: (i) 

maintaining adequate financial 111aJ,1agement arrangements and ensuring that these continue 

to be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accow1ting records, 

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tilIle the financial position of the Board; (iii) 

designing, implementing and maintaining h1terna~ controls rele"llant to the preparation and 


I fair presentation of the financial statements, aJ,1d ensuring that they are free from material 

misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Agency; (v) 

selecting and applying appropriate accounting pDlicies; and (vi) making accounting


I estimates that are reasonahle in the circumstances. 


TI1e Directors accept responsibility for the Agency's financial statements, which have been


I prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
, 

I 

judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting 


Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required :JY the PFM Act 2012 and the State Corporations 


Act. The Directors are of the opinion that the Agency's financial statements give a true and fair 

view of the state of Agency's transactions duc-ing the finaJ,1cial year ended June 30,2022, and of


I the Agency's financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness 


I 

of the accounting recordb maintained for the Agency, which have been relied upon in the 

preparation of the Agency's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of 


internal financial control. 

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Agency will not remain


I a going concern for at least the next twelve months f~'om the date c,f this statement. 


I 

Approval of the financial statements 

The Agency's financial statements were approved by the Board on 27th September 2022 and 


signed on its behalf by: 

I 
Julius Bakasa Wasike, HSC Eng. Gongi Samson Peter 

I 
 Chairman of the Board Ag. Chief Executive Officer 
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Co~parativ~ 
Figures 

2021-2022 
Component (Kshs\ 
Work-In-Progress Belgium Addi~onal 
durinQ the ~ear - Note 19 

I 	General Suppliers (Trade ~nd Other 
Pay'ables) - Note 20 ' 
Long' term Loan Repayments 

KFW Loan Nzoia Phase 1- Note 25 

KFW Loan Nzoia Phase 2'~- Note 25 

WaSSIP - Note 25 
 19'7,)'03,399 

oan Vihiga Cluster - Note 26 659,3§p,026 

663,643,318 

206,591,323 

382,76 i,730 
487,.436,770 

Audited Financial 
Statements 

2020-2021 Variance 
(Kshs) (Kshs) 

326,860,664 336,782,654 

200,607,221 5,984,102 

309,954,424 72807,306 
342,985,214 144451,556 
128141,391 69,562,008 
322,601,352 336,778,674 

I In the circumstances, the accuracy of the respective balan'ces could not be confirmed. 

I 
2. Unsupported Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions - Transfers from Other 

Government Units ' 

The statement of financial performance, and as disclosed in Note 3 to the financial 

I statements, reflects an amount of Kshs275,31 0,340 in respect of transfers from other 
Government units, being gifts and services in kind.' The amount comprises of 

I 
Kshs.128,000,000 and Kshs.147,310,340 relating to recurrent and development grants 
respectively. However, supporting schedules for development grants provided for audit 
review reflects an amount of Kshs.145,23-',OOO resulting to a variance of Kshs.2,073,340 
which was not supported. 

I In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of development grants amount of 
Kshs.147,310,340 could not be confirmed. 

I 3. Property, Plant and Equipment·· .J. 

3.1 Lack of ownership documents 

I The statement of financial position, and' as' disclosed IIf Note 18 to the financial 

I 
statements, reflects a property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.8,591,243,391. 
Included in the balance are amounts of Kshs.48,374,204 and Kshs.1 ,076,523 relating to 
land and buildings and motor vehicles respectively. However, ownership documents for 
land and motor vehicles were not provided for audit review, 

I In the circumstances, accuracy, ownership and fair valuation of land and buildings and 
motor vehicles balances could not be confirmed. ' 

I 4. Receivables from Exchange Transactions 

I 
The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note 15 to 
statements, reflects receivables from exchange transactions 

the financial 
balance of 

Kshs.499,206,680 all of which were above ninety (90) days old as at 30 June, 2022. 
No explanation was provided on why the same had not been collected. 

I 
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In the circumstances, the recQverability of the receivables from exchange transactions of 
Kshs.499,206,680 could not be confirmed. I 
5. Unsupported Long-Term Loans 

The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial Istatements, reflects a long,..term loans due balance of Kshs.1 ,465,088,349. The balance 
comprises of three (3) loan ba~ances of Kshs.485,787,515, Kshs.673,802,290 and 
Kshs.305,498,544 relating to; KF\jV-Nzoia Phase1, KFW-Nzoia Phase II and WaSSIP, Irespectively. However, supporting schedules showing principal amounts, repayments 
during the year and balances as at 30 June, 2022 were not provided for audit review. 

, . . IIn the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the long-term loans balance of 
Kshs.1 ,465,088,349 coulrJ not be confirmed. 

The audit was conducted in accordal"ce with International Standards of Supreme Audit I 
Institutions (ISSAls). I am independent of the Lake Victoria North Water Works 
Development Agency Management;n accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I 
have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance I 
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in 
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my qualified opinion. I 
Key Audit Matters I 
Key audit matters are those. matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most 

significance in the audit ofthe financial statements. There were no key audit matters to 

report in the year under review 
 I 
Other Matter 

I1. Budgetary Control and Performance 

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final revenue budget 

and actual on comparable basis amOW'lts of Kshs.1 ,001 ,053,159 and Kshs.298,077,655 
 I 
respectively, resulting to underfundingof Kshs.702,975,504 or70% of the budget. 

Similarly, the Agency spent an amoi'rit of Kshs.653,929,619 against approved budget of I 
Kshs.1 ,001 ,053,159 resulting to under·performance of Kshs.347, 123,540 or 35% of the 

budget. 
 I 
The underfunding and under-performance affected the planned activities and may have 

impacted negatively on service delivery to the public. 
 I
2. Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern 

The statement of financial performance indicates that during the year under review, the I
Agency reported a deficit of Kshs.355,851,964 (2020/2021 - Kshs.(380,016,532). The 

accumulated deficit· increased from Kshs.2,958,345,342 in 2020/2021 to 
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,I Kshs.3,304,614,641 during the year under review. !n addition, the Agency's total current 

liabilities of Kshs.1 ,646.330,327 as at 30 June, 2022 exceeded its total current assets of 
Kshs.571 ,770,301 by Kshs.1 ,074,560,026. 

I In the circumstances, the continued poor financial performance is an indication that the 
Agency is unable to meet its financial obligatirms as and when they fall due and that its 

I future sustainability isin dOubt. . . 

I 
REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC 
RESOURCES 

Conclusion 

I As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution,based on the audit procedures 

I 
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness 
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing 
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been 
applied lawfully and in an effective way. 

I Basis for Conclusion 

1. Long outstanding Rec~ivables 

I The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions 
of KshsAO,617,601 which, as disclosed under Note 16 to the financial statements, 
includes imprest due from staff of Kshs.2,217,7(11. Analysis of the imprest register and 

I ageing analysis revealed that as at 30 June, 2022, imprests totalling Kshs.818,691 had 
been outstanding for over 90 days. This is contrary to Regulation 93(5) of the Public 
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which provides that a 

I holder of a temporary imprest shall account for or surr~nder the imprest within seven (7) 
working days after returning to dutv station. 

I In the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law, 

2. Non-Compliance with the Law on Ethnic Composition 

I Analysis of the Agency's staff establishment mcords revealed that during the year under 

I 
review, the Agency had a total of sixty-eight (68) employees. However, out of this number, 
40 employees or 59% were from the same ethnic community. This is contrary to 
Section 7(2) of the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008 which provides that no 

I 
public establishment shall have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic 
community. 

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law. 

I 3. Stalled Project 

The Agency awarded a contract to a local contractor for the rehabilitation and 

I augmentation works for Kopsiro Community Water Project at a contract sum of 

I Report of the Auditor-General on Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 
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I 
Kshs.28,059,050. The contract period was six (6) months commencing on 
02 September, 2019 and was scheduled for completion 'on 02 March, 2020. However, a 
review of available records ano correspondences revealed that as at 30 June, 2022, the I 
project had stalled for more than two years and the contractor had abandoned site. As at 
the time of stalling, the contractor had been paid an amount of Kshs.6,098,809. No Iexplanation was provided for th~ stalling of the project. 

In the circumstances, the Agency:did not obtain value for money. I 
The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. rhe standard requires that I 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance 
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the I 
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that 
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my conclusion. I 
REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT 

AND GOVERNANCE 
 I 
Conclusion 

IAs required by Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit 

procedures performed, I confirm that, ~10thing has come to my attention to cause me to 

believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective. 
 I 
Basis for Conclusion 

IThe audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315and ISSA12330. The standards 

require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective 

processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were 
 Ioperating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion. 


IResponsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual 
 I 
Basis) and for maintaini!1g effective internal controls as Management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness 
 I 
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance. 

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the I 
Agency's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to sustain ability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless 

Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Agency or cease operations. 
 I 
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I Management is also re'sponsible for the suhmission of the financial statements to the 
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act, 
2015. ..'. ' .... '. 

I 
. tt'•. 

In addition to the responsibility' for the preparation and presentation of the financial 

I 
statements described . above, r~/fanagement is also responsible for ensuring that the 
activities, financial transactions and information reflected, in the financial statements are 
in compliance with the authorities which goverr. them, and that public resources are 
applied in an effective way,' . 

I The Board of Directors is :responsible for overseeing the Agency's financial reporting 
process, reviewing the effectiveness ('f how Management monitors compliance with 
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and 

I systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance 

I 
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy· and effectiveness of the control 
environment. 

Auditor~General's Responsibilities for the Audit 

I The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable' assurance about whether the financial 

I 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015, and submit the.sudit report in compliance with 

I 
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in .accordance with ISSAls will always detect 
a material misstatement and weakness \vhen It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

I 
or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

I 
I 

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and 
performed to express. a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities, 
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in 
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in 
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution 
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. 

I Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of 
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness 

I 
of internal controls, .rjsk management and gvvernance processes and systems in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)'(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, and submit 
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of 

I 
I 

the internal controls would not necessarily disdose all matters in the internal control that 
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in 
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not 
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may 

I Report of the Auditor-General on Lake Victoria lvurth Water Works Development Agency for the year ended 
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occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigne~'functions. I
Because of its inherent limitations, 'internal controls may not prevent or detect 
misstatements and instancesofhon;-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods' are: subject to the risK that controls may become I 
inadequate because of changes in cor.dttions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
Agency's policies and procedures mayd~teriorate. ' I
As part of an audit conducted' in accordance with ISSAls, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

I• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error,design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a Ibasis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. I 

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 
 I 

• 	 Conclude on the apprcpriatenessof the Management's use of the applicable basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Agency's 
 I 
ability to continue to sustain its services. If I conclude that a materia! uncertainty exists, 
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My I 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Agency to cease to 
sustain its services. I 

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
 I 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate a\Jdit evidence regarding the financial information and I
business activities of the Agency to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

• 	 Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances. I 
I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit anLl significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
 Iin internal controls that areidentified'during the audit. 

I 

I 
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I I also provide Management with 8 statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 

I 
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters th,at may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and 
where applicable, rela.tedsafeguards. ' 

I 

CP~'CBS'I AUDITOR-GENERAL 

I Nairobi 

11 April, 2023 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Ag'!ncy 

Annual Report and Financiiil Statements 

for the year ended 30 June 2022 


12. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PER):{ORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 

I 
I 

2022 
2021-2022 2020-2021 

*(Restated) 
Kshs Kshs 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

I Transfers from othefGovernrnents-gifts and 
services-in-kind 3 275,310,340 329,426,660 

I 275,310,340 329-426,660 

I 
Revenue from exchange transactions 
Other Income 4 1,730,944 1,066,411 
Loan Repayment Income 5 21,036,371 21,254,930 

I 
22,767,315 22,321,341 

Total revenue 298,077,655 351,748,001 
Expenses 

I 

I 


Employee costs 6 128,646,319 120,304,773 

Remuneration of Directors 7 22,281,846 20,552,524 

Depreciation and amortization expense 8 285,452,410 307,539,300 

Repairs and maintenance 9 5,853,872 6;379,028 

Supply and services 10 8,278,126 14,317,783 


I 

Transport Costs 11 4,453,095 7,749,894 

General expenses 12 47,043,801 53,128,812 

Rural water supply Development 13 151,920,149 201,792,419 


I 

Total expenses 653,929,619 731,764,533 

Other gains/(losses) 

Surplus/{ Deficit) before tax (355,851,964) (380,016,532) 

Taxation 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period (355,851,964) (380,016,532) 

I The notes set out on pages 7 to 33 form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
The financial Statements set out on pages 2 to 6 were signed on behalf of the Board of 

I Directors by: 

I ;;I~
Ag. Chief Executive Officer Healllainance & Resource Mobilization Chairman of the Board 
Eng. Gangi Samson Peter CPA Anthony Kisaka Han. Julius B. Wasike

I ICPAK No. 7014 

Date.................................... .. Date................................... . ·Date .............................. . 


I 

I 
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Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency 
Annual Report and Financial Statem.ents I 
for the year ended 30 June 2022 

13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022 I2021-2022 2020-2021 
*(Restated) 

Kshs Kshs I
Assets 


Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 14 29,567,555 12;118,895 
 I 
Receivables from exchange transactions 15 499,206,680 512,409,813 


Receivables from non-exchange transactions 16 40,617,601 235,811,362 


Inventories 17 2,378,468 2,209t731 
 I 
571,770,305 762,549,800 


Non-current assets 
 I 
Property, plant and equipment 18 8,591,243,391 8,873,386,837 


Capital Works In Progress 19 4,884A73,844 4,843,936,255 


13,475t717,234 13,717t323,092 
 I 
Total assets a047,4~539 14A;7!l,872,892 


.Liabilities 
 ICurrent liabilities 


Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 20 153,032,837 213,466,160 


Provisions 21 5,512/802 5,512,802 
 I 
Deferred income 22 0 77,073,340 


Employee benefit obligation 23 9A68/243 10/313,705 


Taxation 24 13/228,095 14/846,373 
 I 
Long term loans due 25 	 1,465,088/349 1,067,901,899 


1,646,330,327 1,389,114,280 
 INon-current liabilities 


Borrowings 26 11,1,2;;',328.966 1L571,6Ql,066 


;lJ,571,6QLP66 
 Il~~ 
Total liabilities 	 12,799,659,292 12,960,775,346 

Net assets 	 IJ24M2:8,ill 1,512,097,5.% I
Reserves 4,552,442,888 4,477,442,888 


AccunlulClied surplusjdeficit (3,304,614,641) (2,958,345,342) 


Total net assets and liabilities b241,8~LZ47 1{519,Q97.546 
 I 
The FinanciCll Statements set out on pages 2 to 6 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by: I 

~~'.~~Olfim He~a~ce & Resomce Mobilizatim, Chairman of Z;:rd I 
Eng. Gongi Samson Peter CPA Anthony Kisaka Hon. Julius B. Wasike 

ICPAK No. 7014 I 
Date..................................... . Date, ................... " ............ . 	 Date................................ . 
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14. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 

Grants 

Attributable to the owners of the controlling ennty 

Grants 
KIDDP 

Grants KFW Grants 
Worldbank 

Accumulated 
5urplu5/(Deficit) 

Grants GOK Total 

K5h5 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs 

Balance as 1 July 2020 

Accumulated depreciation for 
h'ansferred assets 

Transfers to/from during the period 

Surplus/ (deficit) for the period 

Transfers to/from accumulated surplus 

. Balance as at 30 June 2021 "'(Restated) 

25,924,938 

25,924,938 

361,956,401 

361,956,401 

221,783,948 

221,783,948 

1,267,995,799 

1,267,995,799 . 

(2,583,585,404) 

(380,016,533) 

5,256!595 

(2,958,345,342) 

2,599,781,802 

2,599,781,802 

1,893,857,484 

. (3PO,016,533) 

5,256,5% 

·1,519,097,546 

Balance as at 30 June 2021 25,':124,938 361,956,401 221,783,948 1,267,995,799 (2,958,345,342) 2,599,781,802 1,519,097,546 

Accumulated depredation for 
transferred ClS!>cts 

Transfers to/from during .!he peliod 

Surplus/ (deficit) for the period 

Transfers to/from accumulated surplus 

(355,851,964) 

9,582,665 

75,000,000 75,000,000 

(355,851,964) 

9,582,665 

Balance as at 3il June 2022 25,924,938 361,956,401 .221,783,948 1,267,995,799 (3,304,614,641) 2,::;74,781,802 1,247,828,247 

Grants from KIDDP (Kenya Italy Debt Development relates to projects funded by the Italy Government for water proJects within the Agency area. 

Grants from KFW (German Development Bank) relates to development of water projects in Trans Nzoia, Bungoma, Kakamega & Busia counties. 

,. 
·r 
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for the yeaI' ended 30 June 2022 

15. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 
Cash flows from operating activities . Notes 2021-2022 2020-2021 

~·(Restated) 

K5h5 Kshs 

Income 
Government grants 3 275,310,340 329,426,660 

Other Income 4 1,730,944 1,066,411 

Loan Repayment Income 5 21,036,371 21,254,930 

Total Income 298,077,655 351,748,001 

Expenses 
Employee costs 6 (128,646,319) (120,304,773) 

Remuneration of Directors 7 (22,281,846) (20,552,524) 

Repairs and maintenance 8 (5,853,872) (6,379,028) 

Supply and services 9 (8,278,126) (14,317,783) 

Transport Costs 10 (4,453,095) (7,749,894) 

General expenses 11 (47,043,801) (53,128,812) 

Rural water supply Development 12 (151,920,149} (201,792,419) 

Total Expenses (368,477,208) (424,225,233) 

Cash flows from operating activities (70,399,553) (72A77,232) 

Working capital changes 
(lncrease)/Decrease in debtors 208,396,893 (71,501,732) 

(lncrease)/Decrease in stores (168,737) (1,327,638) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Creditors 257,216,047 452,188,319 

Prior year's adjustment 9,582,665 5,256,595 

Net cash flows from operating activities 404,627,315 312J38,312 
Cash flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 18 (3,308,964) (707,430,238) 

Purchase of Capital Work in Progress 19 (40,537,590) 
Net cash flows used in Investing Activities (43,846,554) (707,430,238) 
Cash flows from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from borrowings 26 659,380,026 
Repayment of borrowings/ transfer to current liabilities 26 (418,332,100) (297,475,655) 
Increase in deposits 75,000,000 
Net cash flows used in financing activities (343,332,100 361,904,371 
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,448,661 (33,387,555) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periOd 14 12,118,895 45,506,450 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 14 29,567,555 12,118,895 
~----~--

The Financial Statements set out on pages 2 to 6 ~V'ere signed on behcIlf of the Board of Directors by: 

fI"I' ~ ;:fC-/;V~ 
Head of Finance & Resource Mobiliza tion Chairman of the Board 

Eng. Gongi Samson Peter CPA Anthony Kisaka Han. Julius B. Wasike 
ICPAK No. 70]4 

~eOffker 

Date..................................... . Date.................................. . Date............................... .. 
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16. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 
Original Adjustment Final budget Actual on Performance 

budget comparable difference 
basis 

2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 
Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs 
Govemment Grants 189,736,505 189,736,505 128,000,000 (61,736,505) 
GOK Rural development grants 335,071,000 335,071,000 147,310,340 (187,760,660) 
Other Revenues 37,000,000 37,000,000 1,730,944 (35,269,056) 
Levy Income from WSPs 36,465,000 36,465,000 0 (36,465,OOO) 
Loan Repayment Income 402,780,654 402,780,654 21,036,371 (381,744,283) 
Total income 1,001,053)59 0 1,001,053,159 298,077,655 (702,975~S04) . 
Expenses 
Personnel Emoluments 139,731,742 139;731,742 128,646,319 llr085,4?3 
Boards Expenses 21,487,600 21,487,600 22,281,846 (794,246) 
Administrative/Establishment 55,905,063 55,905,063 
Expenses 47,043,F\Cl 8,861,262 
Repairs and maintenance 15,354,162 15,354,162 5,853,872 9,500,290 
Supply and services 15,752,938 15,752,938 8,278,126 7,474,812 
Transport costs 10,770,000 10,770;C)OO 4,453,095 6,316,905 
Deprpclation and amortization ~xpense 402,780,654 402,780,654 285,452,410 117,3:L8,244 
Rural water supply Development 339,271,000 339,271,000. 151,920,149 187,350,851 
Total expenditure 1,001,053,159 o 1,001,053,159 653,929,619 347,123,540 
Surplus/ (deficit) for the period 0 0 0 (355,851,964) (1,050,099,044) 

Notes: 
Income: 
The WSPs did not pay amounts for Loan Repayment Income. 

Expenses: 

Repairs and maintenance: Insurance of buildings and maintenance of assets not done during the peliod. 

Depreciation and amortization expense: Some assets were not completed in time hence were not transferred to fixed assets. 

Rural water supply Development: Delays in project implementation. 


%of 
utilization 

67% 
44% 

5% 
0% 
5% 

30% 

92% 
104%­

84% 
38% 
5?% 
41% 
71% 
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Annual Report and Financial Statemel1ts 
for the year ended 30 June 2022, 

17. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. General information 
The Agency is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Water Act II 
2002.The Agency is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The ,,' 
Agency's principal activity is to develop, manage and maintain water and sewerage infrastructure. I 
2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation , I 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at re­
valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and financial 
instruments at fair value, impatred assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially I 
determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity witb 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. ­
It also requires managenlent to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Agency's accounting I 
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Notes ' 
The financial statements have been prepar~d r,nd presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional I 
and reporting currency of the Agency. . 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act I 

Water Act 2002, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies 

adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 


I 
3. Adoption of new and revised standards 

The agency did not adopt any new or revised standards in year ending 30th June 2022. 
 I 
4. Summal"Y of significant accounting policies 
a) Revenue recognition 

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions - IPSAS 23 
Fees, taxes and fines 
The Agency recognizes revenues 'from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the asse1 I, 
recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise 

to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchangE I 
revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potentia~ 

associated with the asset will flow to the Agency and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliablY_I' ' 
Transfers fl'om other government entities " 
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and 
recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is fre( I 
from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset wit 
flow to the Agency and can be measured reliably, Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of ' 
comprel:ensi~e income. Developmentj capital. gra~1ts are recognized in the statement of financial positior I 
and realIzed In the statement of comprehenslVe mcome over the useful life of the assets that has beer 
acquired using such funds 

I 

I 


7\ P age I 



I 

•
Ie Victoria North Water Works Development Agency 
.nnual Report and Financial Statel'l1i?rLts''.1 the year ended 30 June 2022 ': 

•.J Revenue from exchange transactions 
ilrdering ofservices" " , 

lie Agency recognizes revenue from rendering of services b}r reference to the stage of completion when 

outcome of t~e transaction canbe estimated relia 1:>ly. The str.ge of cOl'npletion is measured by reference 
t abour hours l11curred to date as a percentq.ge of total estimated labour hours. 

ere the contract outcome cannot be measured r~liably, revenue is recognh::ed only to the extent that 
t expenses incurred are recovera,ble. ',', : 

, , 

;ale ofgoods 
' rlenue from the sale of goods is recognized when tl-:.e significailt risks and rewards of ownership have 

. )een b:ansferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods tmd when the amount of revenue can be 

-Iasured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
t:Ji 1saction will flow to the Agency.. . , 
nterest income 

I 
Ilrest income is accrued using the effective yield method: The effective yield discounts estimated future 

,ash receipts through the expected life of the financial a$set to that asset's net carrying am.ount, The 
'hod applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine inte1'est income each period. 
tal income . 

,~:tal income arising from op:rating le~ses on investm.ent properties is accounted for on a straight-line 
blls over the lease terms and mcluded In revenue. . 
») Budget information 
~ original budget for FY 2021-2022 wa" approvf~d by the Board on 15th January 2021. Subsequent 
r"isions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific 
llrovals from the appropriate authorities. The ac:ditional appropriations are added to the original 
b get by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. 
T e entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the 
jlncial statements. The financial statemEnts are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based 
o he nature of expenses in the st~tement of financid performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a 
:ash basis. The amounts in the fli1ancial statemel'ts were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis 11 reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget 
a actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the 3Fproved budget, is then presented in the 
;tatement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 

Ilddition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amOl..U1ts in the finar\cial statements are also made for 
:lifferences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial 
::>Iements and the approved budget. 

A.. statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of 
cAtparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance 
1:1! been presented. in these financial statements. 

dlroperty, plant and equipment 

Ai property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
lcJ;es. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the itenlS. When 
:;ignificant parts of propt:rty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Agency 

n,1 
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for the year ended 30 June 2022 . .... . ' '1 
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreCIates them accordmgly.. : 

Likewise, when a major inspection is performec1., its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant I 
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and mamtenanc€ 

costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acqtiired in a non-exchange . 

transaction for nil or nominal consideration the 2sset is iilitially meas'ured at its fair value. I 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line .. 

basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value over its estimated I 
useful life. The annual rates in use are: 

Furniture, office equipment & fittings 12.5% 


Computers & Accessories 33.3% 
 I 
Motor vehicle 25 % 


Plant, machinery & equipment 20% 
 I
Water Supply infrastructure 2.5% 


Buildings 10% 
 I 
e) Leases - IPS AS 13 . . 

Finance leases are leases that transfpr substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership oj I 
the leased item to the Agency. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement ot ... 

the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum I 
lease payments. The Agency also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. ThE 

liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial 

recognition. '. I 
Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

0: the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability I 
Fmance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. 

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is nc I 
reasonable certainty that the Agency will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the. 

asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. I 
Operating leases are leases that do not tl'ansfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental tc 

ownership of the leased item to the Agency. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating I 
expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn. 

f) Intangible assets - IPSAS 31 

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially lecognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired I 
in a non-exchange transaction is their fair valUf~ "~ the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, .' 

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairmenl I 
losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized , 

and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. IThe useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

I 
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g) Research and development· costs . 

~l Agency expenses research c·osts a~incurred. [n:velopIT_ent costs on an individual project are 
r gnized as intangible assets wh~n the Agency calidem01lstrate: 

I» Th~ techl:ical feasibility ·0£ cb'mplet~il,g the asset ,)'0, that the asset will be available for use or sale 

» Its mtenhon to complete and its ability louse or:&ell the asset ,. ,

I»How the asset will generate f,utur~ E'::o;~o~l.1.ic benefits or service potential, 

»The availability of re::.ources to complete the ass':!t 

I>-The ability to measure reliably the 2xpenditure duringdevdopment 
,.1 

'ollowing initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at co::;t less any accumulated amortization and 
allInulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the 
'[sset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expect.~d futy,re benefit. During the period of 
l.elopment, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized 
irlnediately in surplus or deficit. 

lifinancial instruments 
F&-tncial assets 
nitial recognition and 111.eaSUl'ement . 
t<lncial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are 
~lassified as financial assets at fair valm: through ,'urplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to­
.urity investments or available-for-sale financial a~~sets, as appropriate. The Agency determines the 
d.sification of its financial assets at initial recognition. , . 

(Ins and 1'eceivables 

'Joans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are1. quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, quch financial assets are subsequently 
rrA.sured at amortized cost using the effective interest rpethod, less impairment. Amortized cost is 
:~ulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
inlgI"al part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising itom impairment are recognized in the surplus 
)1' deficit. 

Filncial assets are valued at the lowe~: of cost or net realizable value. Management estimates the 
llTIOunt of accounts receivable that will not be collectible and p;'pvides ctJ.? allowance for doubtful 
a&unts. Estimates are based upon such factors as an aging of outstanding balances, collection 
~~erience, legal advice and known factors such as cU3tomRl'S in bankruptcy. 

fflt-to-1'1'latutity 
'>Ion-derivative financial assets with fixed or detern1inable payments and fixed maturities are classified 
..lsl.eld to maturity when the Agency has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After 
in!al measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective 

nif-est method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
planium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The losses 

lriing from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit. 

http:E'::o;~o~l.1.ic
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The Agency assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective ev~dence that a fi~ancial asset or f I 
Agency of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a Board of tinancial assets IS deemed to bE 

impaired if, and only if, there is ~bjective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that ' 

has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss ~vent/) and that loss event has ar I 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the Board of financial assets that can 

be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment ~nay include the following indicators: I 
» The debtors or a Board of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty 

» Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments " ' I 
» The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization ' ' 

>- Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes h I 
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults) 

i) Financial liabilities I 
Initial recognition and 1neasul'einent 

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value througl~ I 

surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Agency determines the classification 0 


its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 


. 'II 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus 

directly attributable transaction costs. I 
Loans aHd botto'Willg " . ' 

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortizec I 
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the 

liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process. I 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees OJ , 

costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 

I 
i) Inventories 

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received througl I; 
non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at , , 

the date of acquisition. I 
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, at, 
follows: 

>- Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method I 
>- Finished goods and work in progress: ,:ost of direct materials and labor and a proportion 0~1 

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing cosh " 
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\"er initial recognition, inventory is l~~asur~d at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to 

lexte~1t that a class of inventory is distributed or Ceployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that 
c s of mventory is measured at the lowei' of cost and current replacement cost. 

'I realizable value is the ~stimat~d selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated 
c ts of completion and the estimated cCfst~ necessary t?make the sale, exchange, or distribution. 

l entories are recognized as an expen;~e when depl~yed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary 
c rse of operations of the Agency. . , . 

) Provisions 
/Ivisions are recognized when the Agency has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a~st event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econo;.nic benefits or service potential 
.v.w~ be. required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
°llgatlOn. . . 

'itere the Agency expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance 
c.tract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually 
:ertain. 

~ expense relating to any provision is presented b the statement of financial performance net of any 
'eimbursement. 

J-ztingellt liabilities 
r~ Agency does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the 

I~es to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic 
')enefits or service potential is remote, 

tttil1gel1t assets 

J
The Agency does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose existence 

_ontingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or rnore uncertain future events not wholly 
hin the conh"ol of the Board in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed 

:ltinUallY to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has 
b ome virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's 

lalue can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue 'are recognized in the financial 

Jlements of the period in which the change occurs, 

I 
\:) Nature and purpose of reserves 

Board creates and maintains reserves in terms (} specific requirements. Board to state the reserves 

11' intained and appropriate policies adopted. 
.)tfhanges in accounting policies and estimates - IPSAS 3 
~ Agency recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively, The effects of changes 
'n accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical. 

I 

I 
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Im) Employee benefits 
Retirement benefit plans 

The Agency provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are post. I : 
employment benefit plans under which an Agency pays fixed contributions into a separate Board (a . < 

fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further c~ntributions if the fund does not I 
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior < 

periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged agains1<1 
income in the year in which they become payable.. . 

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. Th<:' I 
defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-aImually on the projected unit credit method basis 

Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on 1< . 

proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce thE 
post-employment benefit obligation. 

n) Foreign currency transactions . ·1 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date 0:1. 

the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statemenl-I 
of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange difference~ 
arising from the settlement of creditors,Ol' from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at 

which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the perioc I 
in which they arise. 
0) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of properly, plant and equipment. I 
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or <. 


constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset i~ I 

complete. Further borrowing costs are charge.i to the statement of financial performance. 

p) Related parties - IPSAS 20 
 I 
The Agency regards a related party as a person Or an entity with the ability to exert control individually 
or jointly, or to exercise significant influenCe! over the Board, or viceversa. Members of key management .. 
are regarded as related parties and comprise the Board of Directors, CEO, Chief Managers. I 
q) Service concession arrangements - IPSAS 32· . 
The Agency analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining tht I 
appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular! where a private party 
contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Agency recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls I 
or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must providE 
them! and at what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through .. : 
ownership! beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the end ofI 
the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an assei 
has been recognized! the Agency also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash 
consideration paid or received. < I 

I 
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-l~ash and cash equivalents
.•~ ru:d cash equival.ents comprise casf.l on hand ar.c1cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and highly 
[lind l11vestments wIth an origil:al moturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to 
. nown amounts of cash and are subject to insiglUficant risk of changes in value. Bank account balances 
"ude amounts held at the Centfal B'~nk of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the 

rancial year. For the purposes of thes~ financial sta~ements, cash and cash equivalents also include short 
:rm cash imprests and advance;s' to authorised pllblic officers and/or institutions which were not 
~Irendered or accounted for at the end~f the financ~al year. " 

) Comparative figures 
_Jere necessary comparative figures for the previous financia~ year have been amended or reconfigured 
t onform to the required changes in presentation. 

rAisclQsure relating tQ PriQr PeriQd Errors ", " 
1~preparation of the financial statements the Agency has restated the financial year 2020-2021 due to 
'Irs arisiI~g out of the audit report being issued 01; draft financial statements. The Agency has made 

d losures 111 note no. 27 that include; 

a) The nature of the of the Prior Period Error 

Ib) The amount of the correction 


c) Each financial statement line affected 


t)lignificant judgments and sources .of estimation uncertainty 
":'he preparation of the Agency's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to 
'I<e judgments, estim.ates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
a ~ ts and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent Ihbilities, at the end of the reporting period. 
1jwever, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a 
aJterial adjustment to the carrying amount of lhe asset or liability affected in future periods. 
itate all judgements, estimates and. aS3umptions made: e.g. 

!mates and assumptions """ 
key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

'(rting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
a ts and liabilities within the next financial Y(:'ar, are described below. The Agency based its 
lssumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were 
f-llpared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due 
1'0 market changes or circumstances arising beyond tne control of the Agency. Such changes are reflected 
Ilihe assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140 
~fullives and residual values 
[he useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform 

plential future use and value from disposal: "" 
:J>The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Agency 
:J>The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in tedmology and processes 

I >-The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed 

)r Availability of funding to replace the asset 


I>Changes in the market in relation to the asset 
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Pl'ovisiol1.S 

. 

I 
Provisions were raised and managerpent determined an estimate based on the information available I 
Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle th{ 
obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. 
u) Grants and deferred income . I 
Grants are recognized when: 
i) The Agency will comply with the conditions attaching to them 
ii) The grants have been received or are on transit at year end I 
iii) Grants are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the same periods that the related 
expenses are recognized. 
iv)Grants exclude assistance that cannot reasonably be valued, and transactions between the I 
government and the Agency that <'Ire in the norma! course of busiI1ess. 

3. Transfers from other Governments-gifts and services-in-kind I 
Government Grants 


. 2021-2022 2020-2021 
 I 
Actual Kshs Kshs 

Recurrent 128,000,000 128,000,000 

Development 147,310,340 201A26,660 
 I 
Total Government Grants 275,310,340 329,426,660 

4. Other Income I 
2021·2022 2020-2021 

Kshs Kshs 

Sale of tenders,Water bowsers services & Other income 1,730,944 
 I1,066All 

Total 1,730,944 1,066All 


I 
5. Loan Repayment Income 


2021-2022 2020-2021 
 I
Kshs Kshs 


Loan Repayment Income 21,036,371 21,254,930 


Total Loan Repayment Income 21,036,371 21,254,930 I 
6. Employee costs I 

2021-2022 2020·2021 


Kshs K5hs 

Basic salary and house allowance 85,381,953 77,947,744 
 I 
Other allowances 4,224,578 5,125,131 

Staff recruitment expenses 664,985 368,970 
 IStaff welfare expenses 331,369 642,015 


Commuter allowance 6,878,208 6,484,089 


Medical allowance/ expenses 13,584,736 13,312,261 
 I 
Contributions to pensions/NSSF 12,590,264 12,337,171 


Leave allowance&Accrued leave .expense 4,990,227 4,087,393 

Total Employee costs 128,646,319 120,304,774 
 I 
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"Remuneration of directors 

I 
&ard committee & conference 

ftonoraria for chairman 

Ital Board remtlneration 


8. Depreciation and amortization expens..! 

I 

l 
&rniture, Office equipment and fittings 

~omputers and ,:elated egnipments 


otor Vehicles 

ater supply infrastructure 


Land and Buildings 


Ital depreciation and amortization 


IRepairs and maintenance 

l
AboTatory / quality control expense, 


aintenance of equipments 


l
inor alteration to building 


Maintenance of computers 

onitoring and evaluation 

pport to water service providers 


Ital repairs and maintenance 


10. Supplies and Services 

I 
l 
Description 


ivertisement and publicity 


I 

omputers stationery and accessories 

~urier and postal services 

I=neral office supplies . 

Internet connections/leT Expenses 


gal and professional services 


I
blishing & printing services 


Professional subscriptions 

nitary and cleaning materials 


ubscription to newspapers 

,,):e:l:~ne, Fax and mobile phones 

:!;)21-2022 

Kshs 
21,321,846 

·960,000 

22,281,846 

2021-2022 

Kshs 
59,634 

3,669,523 
358,841 

2g1,364,412 

285,452,410 

2021~2022 

Kshs 
118,041 

5,Ood 
113,130 
714,982 

4,690,561 
212,159 

5,853,872 

~·O21~2022 

Kshs 
154,100 

5,150 
345,605 
778,751 

2,342A43 
lA73,113 

343,300 
585,781 

1)66,319 

66,725 

2020-2021 
Kshs 

19,592,524 
960,000 

20,552,524 


2020-2021 
*(Restated) 

Ksh5 
88,996 

5,353,401 

0 
281,364,412 
20,732,491 

307,539,300 


2020-2021 

Kshs 
447,059 

40,321 
577,439 

1,604,765 
3,552,694 

156,750 
6,379,028 


2020~2021 

*(Restated) 
Kshs 

997,634 
120,735 
279,238 

1,113,017 
1,613,454 
7,016,224 

513,085 
481,776 

1,080,583 
187,818 

33,519 
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Tender/Seek quotations 

Hospitality supplies and services and natiollaJ 

celeb 


Total Supplies and Services 

11. Transport Costs 

Description 


Transport operating costs-MY Maintenance 

Motor vehicle insurance 

Fuels and oils for motor vehicle 

Total Transport Costs 


12. General Expenses 

Description 

Electricity&Water 

Trade shows & exhibitions 

Training expenses 

Workshops and meeting expenses 

Contracted guards & cleaning services 

Corporate social responsinsibilty,publicity 

Staff travel and accommodations 

Board Capacity Development 

ISO Preparation and acquistion expenses 

Work environment survey / safety 

Adjustment on provisions of debtors 

Bank Charges 

NRVWWDA Expenses 

Total general expenses 


13. Rural water supply Development 

Description 
Rehabilitation of water supplies-UNICEF Funded 
Rural water supply development-Design&Constr~ction 
Total Rural Water Supply Development 

14. Cash and cash equivalents 

KCB Revenue account 1103686909 
KCB Recurrent account 1103686550 
KCB Development account 1103686313 
KCB KISIP Account 1130930009 
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2021-2022 2020-2021 

Kshs Kshs 
1,408,882 3,797,671 

596/320 987,529 
2,447,893 2,964,695 

4A53,095 7,749,895 

2021-2022 

Kshs 
1,447,132 

941,832 
12,627,989 

5,641,918 
1,568,748 
5,863,637 

11,115,110 
130,930 

1,851,693 

536,063 
4,742,088 

235,853 

340,807 
47,043,801 


2020-2021 

Kshs 
1,945,322 

1/107AOO 
7,240,279 
4,392,178 
2,214,654 
9,920,236 

13/073,507 

690,200 

3,474,273 
1,610,465 
4,465,221 

218,203 

2,776,875 
53,128,813 


2021-2022 2020-2021 

Kshs Kshs 
5AOO 365,760 

151,914,749 201,426,660 
151,920,149 


2020-2021 
Kshs 

.lJ38,137 
148,502 
189,580 

27,258 

• 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 


2021-2022 
Kshs 

17,870,685 

509,186 
5,512. 

16,473 
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Cooperative ban.k Developl11ent " 0113609835501 

l ooperative bank Gratuity' ,,01100098355500 
andard Chartered~ KIDDP 0102002530000 

Standard Chartered- WaSSIP 0102002530002 
&andard Chartei:ed- UNICEF 0102002530001 

.~-Potal cash and cash equivalents'f. Receivables from exchange transactions 

Current receivables 
Irsp Debtors 
"otal current receivables 

I. Receivables from non-exchange contracts 

jurren! receivables 

janprest due from staff 
~lary Advances 
Contractor Debtors - KIDDP a11d Unicef 

Irants from Government 
otal current receivables 

I. Inventories 

lonsumable stores 

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net 


alizable value
I
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

189,318 21,939 
10,976,331 10,288,993 

173,541 
0 39,690 
0 

29,567,555 12,118,895 


2021-2022 

Kshs 
499,206,681 
499,206,681 

2021-2022 

Kshs 
2,217,701 
1,466,135 

24,433,765 
12,500,000 

40,617,601 

2021-2022 

1<shs 
2,378,468 
2,378,468 

2020-2021 
Kshs 

512,409,813 


2020-2021 
X'(Restated) 

Kshs 
2,300,098 

635,768 
34,458,830 

198,416,666 
235,811,362 


2020-2021 

Kshs 
2,209,731 
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Cost or Valuation 
Furniture office 

equipment fittings 
12.5% 

Computer 
&Accessories 

33.3% 

Motor 
Vehicle 25% 

Plant, Machinery & 
Equipment 20% 

Water Supply 
Infrastructure 2.5% Land and Buildings Total 

Cost or Valuation 
As at July 1,2019 
TransfelTed assets from WIP 
Additions at cost 
Revaluations 

5,040,225 
13,597,343 

22,302,792 
27,824,906 
8,894,189 

66,655,623 
37,727,046 

161,135,116 7,096,519,486 
3A61,731,765 

696,325,244 

257,969,563.40 

(2,586,636.40) 

7,609,622,805 
3,540,881,060 

702,632,797 

Disposals 
As at June 30,2020 
Depreciation 

18,637,568 59,021,887 
\O,l'tV,":1-!) 

96,242,277 161,135,116 11,2.';4,576,495 255,382,927.00 
(8,140,392) 

11,844,996,270 

Balance as at July 1,2019 
Transferred assets from WIP 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 
Balance as at June 30, 2020 
Cost or Valuation 

4,660,361 
13,597,343 

88,996. 

18,346,700 

17,253,070 
27,824,906 
5,691,576 

0 
50,769,552 

66,655,623 
37,727,046 

(8.140,392) 
96,242,277 

161,135,116 

161,135,116 

1,380,216,683 
489,970,961 
281,364,412 

2,15J ,552,056 

165,859,927.62 

20,732,491.00 

186,592,4I1h12 

1,795,780,781 
569,i20,256 
307,877,475 

2,664,638,120 

As at July 1,2020 
Transferred assets from WIP 

18,637,568 59,021,887 96,242,277 161,135,116 11,254,576,495 255,382,927.00 11,844,996,270 

Additions at cost 
Revalua·tions 

251,800 316,187.00 567,987 

Disposals 
As at June 30, 2021 
Depreciation 

18,637,568 59,273,687 96,242,277 161,135,116 11,254,576,495 255,699,114.00 11,845,564,257 

Balance as at Julv 1,2020 18,346,700 50,769,552 96,242,277 161,135,116 2,151,552,056 186,592,418.62 2,664,638,120 
WIP 

for the year 88,996 5,353,401 281,364,412 20,732,491.1lO 307,539,300 
Disposals 
Balance as at June 30, 2021 18,435,696 56,122,953 96,242,277 161,135,116 2,432,916,468 207,324,909.62 2,972,177,420 
Cost or Valuation 

As atJuly 1,2021 18,637,568 59,273,687 96,242,277 161,135.116 1 L254,576,495 255,699,114.00 11,845,564,257 
Transferred assets from WIP 
Additions at cost 1,873,600 L435,364 3,308,964 
Revaluations 

(183,350) (183,350) 
As at Jun 30, 2022 18,637,568 60,963,937 97,677,641 161,135,116 11,254,576,495 255,699,114.00 11,848,689,871 
Depreciation 
Balance as at July 1,2021 18,435,696 56,122,953 96,242,277 161,135,116 2,432,916,468 207,324,909.62 2,972,177,420 

Transferred assets from WI? 
for the year 59,634 3,669,523 358,841 281,364,412 285,452,410 

Disposals (183,350) (183,350) 
Balance as at June 30, 2022 18,495,330 59,609,126 96,601,118 161,135,116 2,714,280,880 . 207,324,909.62 3,257,446,480 
Net book Values 
As at 1 July,2021 "(Restated) 201,872 3,150,734 8,821,660,027 48,374,204.38 8,873,386,837 
As at June 30,2022 142,238 1,354,811 1,076,523 8,540,295,615 48,374,204.38 8,591,243,391 ' 

P - - - - - - .. - - - .. - - - - - - - •Ili '-_ 
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I 2021-2022 2020-2021 
19. Capital Works In Progress "'{Restated) 
WaSSIP Kshs Kshs 
Balance at the begirming of the year 2,664,738,145 2,644,196,084I Additional during the year .. 5,400 20,542,061 
Transfers to property plant & equipment

I Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 2,664,743,545 2,664,738,145 

I Pans, Dams & Other Rehabilitation Works 
Balance at the beginning of the year 408,168,990 385,492,118 
Additional during the year 31,676,369 22,676,871

I Transfers to property plant & equipment 
Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 439,845,359 408,168,989 

I Chebara Institutions 
Balance at the begirming of the yem" 2,101,730 2,101,730 

I Additional during the year 974,111 0 

I 
Transfers to property plant & equipment 

Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 3,075,841 2,101,730 

BELGIUM 

I Balance at the begimling of the year 1,768,927,390 1,105,284,072 

I 
Additional during the year 7,881,709 663,643,318 

Balance as at 30 J un 2022 1,776,809,099 1,768,927,390 

Total Capital Works In Progress 4,88~,473,844 4,843,936,254 

I 
20.Trade and Other payables 2021-2022 2020-2021 

I Kshs Kshs 

I 
General Suppliers 150)48,091 206,591,323 

Other payabIes 2,684,746 6,874,836 

Total h'ade and other payables 153,032,836.89 213,466,159.00 

I 
I 

21. Current provisions 2021-2022 2020-2021 

Kshs Kshs 
Balance at the begirming of the year 5,512,802 5,512,802 
Additional provisions raised

I Provision utilized 

I 
Change in provision due to change in 


discount factor and time value of money 


Transferred from non-current provisions 

Balance as at 30 June 2022 5,512,802 5,512,802
I "I\.I i''t ____ 

http:213,466,159.00
http:153,032,836.89
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22. Deferred income 

Balance at the beginning of the year(National 
government) 
Addition during the year 
Deferred Income utilized 

Total deferred income 

23. Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans· 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Current benefit obligation 

Gratuity released in the year· 

Total employee benefit liability 

24. Taxation 

VAT 
WHT 

Total 

25.Long Term Loan Repayments Due 

KFW Loan- N zoia Phase I 
KFW Loan- Nzoia Phase II 
WaSSIP 

Total Long Term Loan Repayments Due 

26. Borrowings 

KFWLOAN 

KFW Loan- Nzoia Phase I & II 
KFW Loan- Nzoia Phase 1& 1I 

Total KFW Loan 

2021-2022 

Kshs 

77,073,'340 
70,237,000/ 

(147,310,340) 

o 

• 

I 

I 


2020-2021 I 
Kshs 

° I 
278,500,000 

(201A26,660) I 
77,073,340 

I 
2021-2022 

Kshs 

2020-2021 

Kshs I 
10,313,705 7,990,902 

3,743,301 

{ 4,588,7632 

4,535,676 

{2,212,873} I 
9,468,243 


2021-2022 

K5hs 
7,453,586 
5,774,509 

13,228,095 


2021-2022 

Kshs 
485,787,515 
673,802,290 
305,498,544 

1,465,088,349 . 


2021-2022 

Kshs 
5,087,281,002 
(289,391,305) 

4,797,889,697 

10,313,705 

I 
2020-2021 

Ksh5 
I 

8,254,649 

6,591,724 I 
14,846,373 


I 
2020-2021 


*(Restated) 
 I 
Kshs 


382,761,730 
 I487,436,770 
197,703,399 

1,067,901,899 I 

2020-2021 
~'(Restated) I 

Kshs 
5,304,539,864 I 

_--->-(2_17....:....,2_5......:;8,_86_2.t...-.) 

5,087,281,002 I 

I 

I 
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I IDA LOAN 

I 
Balance at the begirming of the ,.,:ear 

During the year 

Loan Repayments 


Less: total current portion of b":iTK loans 
Long Term Loan Repayments Due

I 
I Vihiga Cluster 

Balance at the beginning of the yeclI' 
During the year

I Less: total current portion of bank loans 

I 
 Total Non-current Borrowings 

I 
27. Disclosures relating to plior p~riod errors 

I 

4,763,325,469 

(21,145,650) 
(107,.795,145) 

1,721,054,595 


4,843,542,262 


1,061,674,568 
659,380,026 

In preparation of the A1U1uaI report and financial st8tements year 2021-2022the Agency has 
restated the financial year 2020-2021 due to errors a:i:ising out of the audit report being issued 

I on draft financial statements. The Agency has made disclosures on prior period errors in the 

I 
table below that includes; 


a) The nature of the of the Prior Period Error 

b) The amount of the correction 

I c) Each financial statement Ene affected 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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27. Disclosures relating to prior period errors .....Continued 

8. Depreciation and amortization expense Audited 
Jun-21 

Kshs 
Furniture, Office equipment and fittings 93,121 
Computers and related equipments 5,353,401 
Motor Vehicles -
Water supply lI,'£rash'ucture , 281,364,412 
Land and Buildings 20,732,491 ' 
Total depreciation and amortization 307,543,425 

10. Supplies and Services 
Audited 
Jun-21 

K8h8 
--­-----­--­

Advertisement and publicity 997,634 
Computers stationery and accessories 120,735 
Courier and postal services 279,238 
General office supplies 1,113,017 

blternet connections/leT Expenses 1,613,454 

Legal and professional services 7,016,224 

Publishing & printing services I 513,085 

Professional subscriptions 481,776 

Sanitary and cleaning materials 1,080,583 

Subscription to newspapers 187,818 

Telephone, Fax and mobile phones 33,519 

Tender/Seek quotations 637,850 

Correction Amount Restated Nature of Correction 
Jun-21 Jun-21 I 

Kshs 
(4,125) 88,996 Overstated depreciation 

- 5,353,401 
- -

--­

281,364,412 
- 20,732,491 

-----­

-4,125 307,539,300 

-
Correctiori Amount Resbted 

-----­ .­
Jun-21 Jun-21 --

Kshs 
- 997,634 
- 120,735 
- 279,238 

-----­

- 1,113,017 
-----­---­

- 1,613,454 
--­-----­

- 7,016,224 --­-----­

- 513,085 

- 481,776 
--­

- 1,080,583 
-----­--­

- 187,818 

- 33,519 

25,200.00 663,050 Adjust of Expendihue 
items capitalized under 
computer and Accessories 

./P,- ­ - _._ - - - _._' ___ ._. __ ___ _ . 
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Hospitality supplies and services and national 217,650 217,650 

celeb
-------------------------------------+-­
Total contracted services 14,292,583 25;200 14,317,783 
16. Receivables from 

! 	 I Audited Correction Amount I Restated I 

Current receivables Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 

Kshs Kshs 1 


Imprest due from staff 
 2,300,098 I 	 - 2,300,098 ' 
--	 ---------------! ­
Salary Advances 635,768 - 635,768 ­
Conh·actor Debtors - KIDDP and Unicef 28,474,7281 5,984,102 34,458,830 IAdvancos '_0 -contractors 

captured under payables 
______-+-__________11--____ moved t.o debtors 

IGrants from Goven1ment 198,416,666 198,416,6661 
I Total current receivables 229,827,260 5,984,10?l 235:-8-1-1-'-1'-36-2-1-;-----_____ 

18. Property,Plant and Equipment 	 8,873,407,912 - (21,U75) 8,873,386,8371 Adjustment -;;r--- ­
Depreciation & Computer 

_ _J and Accessories ­

19. Capital Works In Progress 

I---

Audited 
 RestatedCom:diulL Alno~nt 
f----,- ,---- ~,-------

Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 
1--- ---

KshsKshsKshsWaSSIP,l;",. 	 - ­ 1 -
--- -

2,644,196,084-2,644; 196,084 Balance at t1~e beginning of the year 

-
 20,542,061120,542,061Additional during the year 

; -- -Transfers to property plant & equipment 
2,664,738,1452,664,738,145 -Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 

Pans, Dams & Other Rehabilitation Works 
I 385A92)18385,492,118 -Balance at the beginning of the year 

22,676,871-22,676,871Additional during the year 

-
 -Transf~rs to property plant & equipment 


408,168,989.00 
 408,168,989-Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 	 I 
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Agency 

Chebara Institutions 
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,101,730 - 2,101,730 
Additional during the year - - -
Transfers to property plant & equipment -
Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 2,101,730 - 2,101,730 

BELGIUM 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,105,284,072 - 1,105,284,072 
Additional during the year 326,864,644 336,778,674 663,643,318 Movement for the Loans 

·-~~:':'--:-=-·h"· '. ......"~ disbursed during the year
~-':r -­

omitted 
-

Balance as at 30 Jun 2022 1,432,148,716 336,778,674 1,768,927,390 

Total Capital vVorks In Progress 4,507,157,580 336,778,674 I 4,843,936,254 Movement in W-I-P 
during the year omitted . 

_. 

20.Trade and Other payable5 
Audited Correction Amount Restated 
Jun-21 Jun-21 I Jun-21 

Kshs K5h5 

General Suppliers 200,607,221 5,984,102.00 206,591,323 Advances to contractors 
captured under payables 
moved to debtors 

Other payables 6,874,836 - 6,874,836 .. 

-
Total trade and other pavables 207,482,057.00 5,984,102.00 213,466,159.00 I 

25.Long Term Loan Repayments Due 
Audited Correction Amount Restated 

Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 
K5h5 I Ksh5 

KFW Loan- Nzoia Phase I 309,954,424 72,807,306 382,761,730 Movement for the Loans 
Due during the year 
omitted 

-.- - - - -'_.- - - - - - -'- --."I D 

_ -.­
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I KFW Loan- Nzoia Phase II 

WaSSIP 

- -
Total Long Term Loan Repayments Due 

KFW 

342,985.2141 

128,141.,391 

- - - - - - - - - • 

144,451,556 487A36,770 Movement for the Loans 
Due during the year 
omitted -

69,562,008 197,703,399 Movement for the Loans 

(217,258,862) 5,087,221,.002 Movement for the Loans 
Due during the year 

I Loan Repaymen.!s__ _________ 
I Less: total current ortion of bank loans 
Long Term Loan Repayments Due 

-

!Total iDA Loan 
Vihi a Cluster 
Balance at the beainnina of the ear 
Durina the ear 
Less: total current ortion of bank loans 

---­

Total Vihiga Cluster 

-

1,832,887,4 77 

1/061,674,5681 
659,380,026 

1,721,054,594 

-_.­

(10,654,78~.
----­ ---­ ----­

(69,562,008) Movement for the Loans 
Due during the year 
omitted­

(69,562,O08) ~63/325/469 

0 1,061,674,568 
0 659,380,026 
0 

1,721,054,594 
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Statement of Cash Flows Audited Correction 

1,307,638 

Restated Nature of Correction 
Amount 

Jun-21 Jun-21 Jun-21 
Kshs Kshs 

Purchase of PPE 370,676,764 707,430,238 	 Movement in W-I-P 
during the year 
omitted 

Decrease in debtors 

336,753,474 

65,517,630 71,501,732 	 Advances to 
contractors captured 

5,984,102 

I under payables 
moved to debtors--_. -

Decrease in Stores 20,000 1,327,638
'--'-­

Movement for the 
Loans Due during the 
year omitted 

Rural water supply development 

Decrease in creditors 159,383,347 292,804,972 452,188,319 

201,792,419 . 
Repayment of borrowings/h'ansfer to current liabilities 

201,792,419 0 
Movement for the 
Loans Due/repayment 
during the year 
omitted 

10,654,785 286,820,870 297,475,655 

~D ___ ________________ l. 
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

I Companies and other parties related to the LVNWYVDA include thoSE: parties 
who have ability to exerdse cOl{tn?1 or exe,rcise sigJ1~ficant influence over its 

I 
operating and financia!' decisi'Ol?s., Related parties include. mariagement 
personnel, their associates and dose iamilv members. 

~ . . . ,) 	 . \ 

I 
The following have significant ir.fl~ence over the age::l:y's operating and financial 
decisions ' ' 

i) County Governments within the agency's area of Jurisdiction 

I 
ii) Water Sector Trust Fund 
iii) WASREB 

I 
iv) WARMA 
v) VVater Service Providers 
vi) Development partllers 
vii) Key management 

viii) Board of directors 


I ix) PIC 

x) SCAC 
xi) Ministry of Water & SCl.nitation

I xii) Inspectorate of State Corporations 

I 

I 

a) Related party transactions 
Grants received from related parties' GOK 
Loans received from related parties' Belgil..:.m 

I 
 b) Key management remuneration 

Directors 
Key management compensatiop 

I c) 	 Due from related parties 

I Due from Water Services Companies 

I d) Due to related parties 

Due to county Busia 

I 
29. Financial Risk lvianagement-

I 

2021-2022 ' 
Kshs 

236,237,000 

236,237,000° 
, 

22,281,846 
19,033,320 
41,31_5,166 

499,206,681 
49j,2D6~681. 

._ 	],552,802 ' 
1,552,802 

2020-2021 
Kshs 

406,500,000 
322,60L352 
729,101,352 

20,552,524 
15,783,671 
36,336,195 

512,409,813 
512,409,813 

1,552,802 
1,552,802 

The Agencys' activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and 

liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign cUl'!'ency. The Agency's overall risk

I management programn1e focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business 

enviromnent and seeks. to minimise the poi:ential adv:erse effect of such risks on its 

I 

I 
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performance by setting acceptable levels of risk The Agency does not hedge any risks 

and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an I 
established credit history. 


The company's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below: 
 I(j) Credit risk 
The company has exposure to credit risk, which is the riskthata counterparty will be 

unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash I 
equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables. 

Management assesses the credit quality 'of each customer, taking into account its Ifinancial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set 

based on internal or external assessrnent in accordance with linlits set by the directors. 

The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for I 
doubtful receivables, estimated by. the Agency's management based on prior 


experience and their assessment of the current economic environment. 
 I 
The carrying amount dE financial ?ssets recorded in the financial statements 

representing the Agency' s ma~ilrlUm exposure to credit risk withouttaking account Iof the value of any collateral ?btained is made up as follows: 


Fully performing Past due Impaired 

As at 30 June 2022 Ksh Ksh Ksh 
 I
Trade receivables 40,617;601 499,206,681 

Bank balances 29,567,555 


I 
As at 30 June 2021 Ksh. Ksh Ksh 

Trade receivables 235,811,362 512,409,813 

Bank balances 12,118,894 
 I 

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they 


continue operating. The credit risk associated with past due receivables is minimal 
 I 
and the allowance for uncollectible amounts that the Agency has recognized in the 


financial statements is considered. adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable 
 I 
amounts. 


The bank balance consists o£funds held in savings and current accounts. 
 IThe Agency has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from Water 


Service providers. The board of :directors sets' the Agency's credit policies and 


objectives and lays down paranle[,:;n:: within which the various aspects of credit risk 
 I 
management are operated. 

(ii) Liquidity risk managemeJlt I 
Responsibility for liquidity risl< management rests with the Agency directors, who 


have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management 
 Iof the Agency's short, mediuni.. and long-term funding and liquidity management 

I 
I 
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requirements. The Agm;cy manages liquidity risk th;cugh continuous monitoring of 
(orecasts.and actual cash flowF·,·I " 

The table below represents cashflows payable hy the Agency und~r non-derivative 

I financialliablli,ties by theIr remC').ipil1g cont;'actual matur.ities at the reporting date. The 

amounts discl9sed il'l the table ar~ tIle conhactual undiscounted c~sh flows. Balances 

I due within 90~ays equal their carryjng balances, as the impact of dbcounting is not 

significant The liability 'will however be disposed of when funding is received from 

WSPs, GOK or th~= defees liability period for projects is complete.

I Less Between 
Over

than 30 ,10-90 Total 

I 90days
days days 

Trade Payables As At 30 June 2022 5,723,432 4,286,906 1.15 358,076 150,348,091

I 
Trade Payabies As At 30 June 2021 46.296,463 18,654,116 141,640,744 206,591,323 

I (iii) Market Risk . 

I 
The Agency has put in place an internal audit functicn to assist it in assessing the risk 

faced by the L VNWWDA or. an ongoing basis, ~vah.late and test the design and 

effectiveness of its internal accounting and operational controls. 

I Market risk is the risk arising from change3 in market prices, such as interest rate and 

foreign exchange rates which will affect the Agency's income or the value of its 

holding of financial instrurnents. The obipctive of market risk ll1anagement is to 

I manage and control market risk exposllL'ES withiila:ceptable parameters, while 

I 
optimising the return. Overall r2sponsibihty for maliaging market risk rests with the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee, 

The Agency's Finance an-:i S!.rategy department is r~sponsible for the development of 

detailed risk management policies (subject to reView and approval by Audit and Risk

I Management Committee) and for the day to day implementatinJ1 those policies, 

There has been no change to the Agency's exposure to market risks or the maIU1er in 

I which it 'manages and measures the ric;k. 

I 
(a) Foreign Currency Risk 

The Agency has transactional cun'cncy exposures, Such exposure arises through 

purchases of works, goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local 

currency. Invoices denomina ted ir, foreign currer,cies are paid within 30 days from the

I date of the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing 

exchange rate. 

I As at the end of the reporting period the agency did not have any assets or liabilities 

denominated in foreign currency, 

I 
I 

., 
J" ' 
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(b) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Agency's financial condition may be adversely I 
affected as a result of changes in intE.rest rate levels. The Agency's interest rate risk 

arises from bank deposits. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest Irate movements on the Agency's deposits. 

Management of interest rate risk 

To manage the interest rate risk, management has. endeavoured to' bank with I 
institutions that offer favourable interest rates. 

(iv)Capital management I 
Capital managed by the Agency is the equity attributable to the equity holders (GOK). 

The primary objective of the Agency's capital management is to ensure that it Imaintains healthy capital ratio in order to support its business. 


The Water business is cUl~rently in the growth phase driven by a rise in demand and 


Government policy. The funding of Water capacity is obtained from exchequer 
 I 
funding, donor funding from international institutions and cash generated from water 


asset lease fees. The adequacy of water tariffs allowed by the regulator and the level 
 I
of Government support m:e key factors in the sustainability of the Agency. 

30. Contingent Liabilities I2022 2021 

Ksh Ksh 


Legal Contingent Liabilities' 1Z9QQJl(lQ l7,90(1000 
 I 
The likely outcome of these suits cannot be deternlined asat the date of signing these 

financial statements. 
 I 
Based on the information currently available, the Directors believe that the ultirnate 


resolution of these legal proceedings would most likely not have a material effect on 
 I
the results of the Agency's operations, financial position or liquidity. 


The following cases were outstanding at year end: 

I No I Case number ------rl'c-r-a-r-ti-e-s--------------- ­ I 

1 NRB NET 113/2013 ___ I l\·1araba sewera e ro'ect case 

\2 KAKAMEGA ELC Judith Asamba Usbamba vs. Spencon & 
 I594/2010 . .. 'I LVNWWDA '. ' 


3 Busia Environment &Land : Wilson Ogola -vs. LVNWWDA & 2 OTHERS 

~ Court Petition nUll1ber 5 of 
 I

2015 
i 4 Kakamega ELC 161/2014 Charles Alemba Lisamula & Ana. Vs. 

LVNWWDA I 

I 

I 


6 

5 Civil Appeal No. 278 of 
2016 

Ama:si Water Services Company Ltd - VS­
hi & LVNWWDA Francis Shire Chac 

Bungoma CMCC 269L2014 IRyan .J3unyasi Vs. LVNWWDA 

I 
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7

I 
I 8 

I 9 

I 
10 

11 

12

I 
13 

I 14 

I 15 

I 
16 

17 

18

I 
19 

I 20 

I 


Bungoma ELC Case No'. j ISOIO~Ol1 Kipchoke Kipsigei al;'d Alex Kipsigei 
of 2015 , ," Vs., LVNWWDA, County Government of 

. " " BungOi::1a & Others 

KSM CIVIL APPEAL !"\TO. 
 Eng. Alfred O. Amombo vs LVNWWDA & Hon. 
78 OF 2018 .. Joseph K. Lagat .. 


-

!KSM ELRCNO 337/2017 Kem1eth Ir:.dU1:ia -vs- L VNWWDA. 

NRB ·HCCC PETITION, Council ofC0unty Governors ..,.vs- LVNWWDA 
NO. 277 OF 2017 & 15 Others 

' KSM ELRC NO. 59 of 2018 Peter Kiplangat Bett -vs- LVNWWDA & Hon. 
Joseph LC!gat 

KIMILILI CMC ELC CASE Nancy Wanyonyi -vs- LVl'IWSB & 2 Other 
47 of 2018 I 
VIHIGA CMC ELC Case Joseph Sabwa & Others - VS- LVNWSB & Ano. 

I 

No.1 of 2019 

KKMG CMC Case No. 175 
 Patrick Boy Makmi -vs - LVNWSB 

of 2015 

BGM CMC Case 138 of 2017 
 Kem1edy Wafuh -vs- LVNWSB 

NRB HC Petition No. 276 or 
 Emmanuel Buchichi 2 Others -vs- LVNWWDA 
2019 
Kitale CMC Case No. 107 of Juliet Naliaka Mayeku vs LVNWSB 

2019 

Butali SPM Case No. 117 of 
 Abigael Namasake vs L VNWSB 

2019 
 --, 

Geoffrey Nathan vs- LVNWSB 
.2019 
KSM ELRC Petition No. 11 

Butali SPM Case No. 118 of 

Joseph Oyolo & Ano vs LVNWSB 

of 2020 


-' 

31. Events after the reporting period 
As at 30th June 2022, Kshs 12,500,000 (Twelve million five hundred shillings) was in 

I transit from the Parent Ministry. These amounts were for development projects. 

32. Dividends/surplus remission ' 

I LVNWWDA did not make any surplus during the year (FY 2021/2022) and hence no 
remittance to the Consolidated Fund. 

I 33. Taxation 

LVNWWDA is a government parastatal and as such is not expected to pay taxes. 

I 34. Deferred tax liability 
LVNWWDA is a government parastatal and as such is not expected to pay taxes. 

I 

I 

I 
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35. Ultimate and holding entity 
The entity is a State Corporation under the Ministry of Water & Sanitation and I
Irrigation. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya~ 

36. Currency I

The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings (Kshs). 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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18. APPENDICES 
APPENDIX I: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. 
We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we 
expect the issues to be resolved. 

Reference No. 
on the 

external audit 
Report 

. bi1' Recelva es
' N'from on­

1EXC~1ana-e 
'f °t'ranS3C lO;::tS 

. 

" . ICaplta 
Works in 
Progress 

I 
I 	

ManagementIssue / Observations from Auditor 
comments 

I Imprest due from staff of Kshs 818,691 have 

been outstanding for over 90 days out of which P 'd d
" 	 ,rOVI e
ll11Drest totallmg Kshs 669,830 relate to thIrteen I 'if" 0 

... 	 c ar lcatlons ~ 
(13) employees who are no longer employees of 'I'd 1"reconCle t 1eI the agency, Further, nnprest totaHmg Kshs
I, 	 , ,amounts,
i 349,740 relatmg to fouJ,"teen (14) offICers were 

'I not in~luded in the iIpprestregister, 
Tl t f f' .' I ' , . I d d Provided.

1e s atement 0 mancla pOSItIon me u e, 
additions for the year of Kshs 20,542',061 that sdupport f' ," 	 ocuments or 
were not supported by payment vouchers th d'

e expen Iture, 
. 	 ..

3. Cash and Balances 111 three (3) bank accounts totallmg ProvIded 
Cash Kshs 361,733 were not supported by certificates certificates of 

IEqui~alents of bank balances. bank balances. 

Focal Point person 
to resolve the issue 

(Name and 
designation) 

1CPA Ant 10n
K' , Y

IsaKa 

St tu. ' Timeframe: 
(Res~lv:dj l'O:Jil,t adate Whe11. 

' N ot 
Resolv~d) 

" 

CM~& RM 
1 1< 

Resolved 

CPAAnthony
K' k 

lsa a 
CMF& RM

"" 

Resolved 

CPA Anthony
K' k 

Isa a 
CMF& RM 

Resolved 

,!fOU, expect the 
I" ' ,.,I	!ssue ,to be 

resolved)I'1'''' 

I 	" . 

, 
I
I 

'I!
' I 

- , ' 'J' 
___ .. 

I~ 

I 
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Reconciled,
!4.Trade and 

Other payables balance is Kshs 6,874,836. However, restated and CPA Anthony Kisaka , Other Paya bies 
the supporting schedule reflects a balance of Kshs included a Resolvedfrom Exchange 
12,858,938 resulting to a variance of Kshs 5,984,102. disclosure relating CMF&RMTransactions 

to th!..Eeriod. I 
Elizabeth NgalaProperty, plant and equipment excludes The Agency is15.1 Land and INotBuilding undetermined value of land and buildings where processing the 1 Year ICorporation IResolvedthe Agency offices are housed Balance tittle d€ed. 1

Secretary I 
Depreciation charge of kshs 20,732,491 has been Reconciled, I5.2 In?-ccuracy 
computed on already fully depreciated motor restated and CPA Anthony Kisaka· 1Iof Depreciation 
vehicles and no documentary evidence was included a Resolvedi. Charge on 

I provided to support revaluation of motor vehicles disclosure relating CMF&RMIMolor Vehicle if any. to the eeriod. 
I5.3 Motor I Provided CPA Anthony Kisaka

Logbooks for nine (9) motor vehicles still in use byVellicle Resolvedlogbooks for the 
the Agency were not provided for audit reviewOwnersllip motor vehicles. CMF&RM

Documents 
-~--

Supporting schedules showing principal amounts, 
supporting CPA Anthony Kisaka 


Long Term 

repayments during the year and the balances as at6.Unsupported 

Resolved 

Loan Balances 


schedules for the ~ovidoo ~.. I~30 June, 2021 for Long - term loans due balance of 
long term loans CMF& RM 


review. 

Kshs 781,081,029 were not provided for audit 

due. I 

~~.ii[~...... 
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer 

Date ....................... .. Date ........................... .. 

• ·_·IIIIiiIi· __.___ - _._._ - - --- -.-.- -­
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY 

1 I Vi1~ga Cluster Water 
ProJect 

1107105301 1 Belgium Aug 201B-Dec 2020 

Total 

-

1,700 I No Yes 

1,700 

• 

,tatus of project implementation 

Project ' Total Project I Total Completion IBudget . .Actual ( Sources of funds IRemarks 
cost(mHlion) Expenditure 

to date 
level (%) (.11'). ml IOns 

; .....~ 

Mil1ions) I 
, 

Vihiga Cluster 1,700 1,776.8 100 200 '0 The Royal Three water supplies for Ka' Mbale 

Water Projects Government of and Maseno Towns of total capacity of 
Belgium and··· 12,SOOrn3/ day were completed and taken 
Government of over on 3151 March, 2021. Monitoring of 
Kenya defects ended on 30th March, 2022. 

-. 
Sirisia - 01wele 440 106 2% 100 100 Korean Intemational Project design of capacity 4,200m3/ day from 

(KOlCA II- Cooperation Agency Terem River has been designed. A two years 

Chepyuk-Kibabii 
Complex) Water 
Supply project 

(KOJCA) and the 
Government of 
Kenya 

works contract of (USD3A99,888.88) was signed 
between the Korea International Cooperation 
Agency (KOrCA) and the contractof- Shanxi 
Geological Engineering Exploration Institute 
Limited on 13th May, 2021. 
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Total Project Total Completion Sources of funds Remarks 
cost(rniIlion) 

Budget Actual ( Project 
Expenditure level (%) 

(millions) Millions)
to date 

Malava Water 2% The works involve construction of three 
Supply projects 

920.1 100 GoK62.5 
Water Supply Schemes of Malava Town 
(capacity 3,556m3!day estimated to cost 340 
million), Namagara (capacity 2,OOOm3! day 
estimated to cost 291.5million) and Shirungu 
(capacity l,200m3!day estimated to cost 
289million). 
A water supply project of capacityGoK 
7,5001113/ day has been proposed utilizing 

5% 22.5 0780Soy-Kosachei 

" I I Nervillus dam as the source of water.
I Condition survey for this dam and design of I 

water supply have been carried out. 
Additionally, this dam has been de-silted. 

-1--.-'.- - - - -. ___ ._._. __ :_. __ "_'_ '. 
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I APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS 

ENTITY NAME: . Lake Victoria North Water Works Development Agency 
Break down of Transfers from the Ministry of Water & Sanitation and Irrigation 

I FY 2021/2022 
a. Recurrent Grants 

I Bank Statement 
Date 

I 11-8-2021 
7-9-2021 

29-9-2021

I 4-11-2021 

I 
I 

2-12-2021 
10-1-2022 

7-2-2022 
2-3-2022 
4-4-2022 
9-5-2022 
7-6-2022

I 30-7-202/~ 

Total 

I b. Development Grants 

I Bank Statement 
Date 

6-10-2021

I 8-10-2021 

I 
4-11-2021 
19-11-2021 
25-11-2021 
16-5-2022 

I 23-6-2022 
6-7-2022 
Total

I 

Amount (KShs) 

10,666,667 
10,666,667· 
10,666,666 
10,666,667 
10,666,667 
10,666,666 
10,666,667 
10,666,667 
10,666,666 
10,666,667 
10,666,667 
10,666,666 

128,000,000 

Amount a<Shs) 

25,000,000 
12,000,000 
11,750,000 
25,000,000 
36,265,000 
12,500,000 
10,222,000 
12,500,000 

145,237,000 

Indicate the FY to 
which the amounts 
relate 

2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 

Indicate the FY to 
which the amounts 
relate 

2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 
2021/2022 

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry 

I 

I 

I 

Chief Manager Finance & Resource 
Mobilization, 
Lake Victoria North Water Works 
Development Agency 
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Head of Accounting Unit, 

Lak.e Victoria North y..late!" 

Works Development Agency 
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APPENDIX IV: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES 

Where Recorded/recognized 
I 

Date 
Received 

StatemenName of the MDA/Donor 
Nature: Total tof 

Capital DeferredTransfering the funds as per bank 
Recurrent! Amount- Financial ReceivablesFund Incomestatement 

Development Kshs Perfoma 
nce 

Eldowas Vlater and Sanitation 
10/25/2021Company Limited Development 6,189,419 X 

Eldowas Water and Sanitation 
X10/25/2021 Development 4,356,086Company Limited 

X 
Eldowas Water and Sanitation 

2/10/2022 Recurrent 2,357,364Company Limited , 

X 
Amatsi Water and Sanitation 

2/11/2022 Recurrent 30,000
! Company Ltd 

X
Nzoia Water and Sanitation 

2/11/2022 Recurrent 100,000Company Ltd 

X
Eldowas Water and Sanitation 

3/10/2022 Recurrent 2,357,364
Company Limited 

X
Eldowas Water and Sanitation 

3/29/2022 Recurrent 100,000
Company Limited 

XNzoia Wt'lter and Scmitatiol1 
3/30/2022 Recurrent 200,000

Company Ltd 

XE1dowas Water and Sanitation 
6,157,351 ..4/26/2022 Development

Company Limited 
, 
" I XEldowas Water and Sanitation 

4/26/2022 Development 4,333,515
Company Limited 

Xf.JzoiaWater and Sanitation 
5/17/2022 Recurrent 200,000

Company Ltd 

XEIdowas Water and Sanitation 
5/18/2022 Recllrren t 2,357,364

Company Limited 

XNzoia Water and Sanitation 
5/18/2022 Recurrent 200,000

Company Ltd 

XNzoia Water and Sanitation 
6/9/2022 Recurrent 200,000

Company Ltd 
Total 29,138,463 

Others ­
Total 

must be 
transfers 
during the

specific 
year 

6,189,4i9 

4,356,086 

2,357,364 

30,000 

100,000 

2,357,364 

100,000 

200,000 ! 

6,157,351 

4,333,515 

200,000 

2,357,364 

200,000 

200,000 

29,138,463 

_ _ a... _____. _ _ ..... __ .. _ .. _ .. _. __ _ 


